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TANZANIA BROADCASTING CORPORATION

Mandate

The statutory mandate and responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor-General are
provided for under Article 143 of the Constitution of the United Republic of Tanzania of 1977
and in Section 10 (1) of the Public Audit Act, Cap 418.

Vision
A credible and modern Supreme Audit Institution with high-quality audit services for
enhancing public confidence.

Mission
To provide high-quality audit services through modernization of functions that enhances
accountability and transparency in the management of public resources.

Motto: “Modernizing External Audit for Stronger Public Confidence”

Core values
In providing quality services, NAO is guided by the following Core Values:
i.  Independence and objectivity
ii. Professional competence
iii. Integrity
iv. Creativity and Innovation
v. Results-Oriented
vi. Teamwork Spirit

We do this by:

v Contributing to better stewardship of public funds by ensuring that our clients are
accountable for the resources entrusted to them;

v Helping to improve the quality of public services by supporting innovation on the use
of public resources;

v Providing technical advice to our clients on operational gaps in their operating
systems;

v Systematically involve our clients in the audit process and audit cycles; and

v Providing audit staff with adequate working tools and facilities that promote
independence.

© This audit report is intended to be used by Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation and may form
part of the annual general report, which once tabled to National Assembly, becomes a public
document; hence, its distribution may not be limited.
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1.0

1.1

TANZANIA BROADCASTING CORPORATION

INDEPENDENT REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL

Chairman of the Board,

Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation,
P.o. Box 9191,

Nyerere Road,

Dar es Salaam, Tanzania

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unqualified Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the statement of
financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement and the
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as
the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly in all material respects,
the financial position of Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation as at 30 June 2022, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) Accrual basis of accounting and the
manner required by the Public Finance Act, Cap. 348.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAls). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
section below entitled “Responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor General for the Audit of
the Financial Statements”. | am independent of Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the National Board of Accountants and
Auditors (NBAA) Code of Ethics, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most
significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. | have determined
that there are no key audit matters to communicate in my report.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Director’s Report or any other equivalent report, statement of management responsibility,
Declaration by the Head of Finance and but does not include the financial statements and my
audit report thereon which | obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.
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My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, and | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed on the other information that | obtained prior to the
date of this audit report, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IPSAS and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the entity or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity’s financial reporting
process.

Responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor General for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an
audit report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. 1 also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control;

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, |
am required to draw attention in my audit report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are, therefore, the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my audit report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest of such communication.

In addition, Section 10 (2) of the Public Audit Act, Cap 418 requires me to satisfy myself that
the accounts have been prepared in accordance with the appropriate accounting standards.

Further, Section 48(3) of the Public Procurement Act, 2011 requires me to state in my annual
audit report whether or not the audited entity has complied with the procedures prescribed
in the Procurement Act and its Regulations.
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1.2 REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATIONS
1.2.1 Compliance with the Public Procurement laws

Subject matter: Compliance audit on procurement of works, goods and services
| performed a compliance audit on procurement of works, goods and services in the Tanzania
Broadcasting Corporation for the financial year 2021/22 as per the Public Procurement laws.

Conclusion

Based on the audit work performed, | state that, except for the matter described below,
procurement of goods, works and services of Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation is generally
in compliance with the requirements of the Public Procurement laws

Under Implementation of Annual Procurement Plan by 67%

During the yeat under review TBC planned to execute 49 procurements totaling TZS
12,608,625,268, which included Goods, Works, and Non-Consultancy Services. However, as of
June 30, 2022, the Corporation managed to execute only 16 of these procurements, which
accounted for 33% of the planned procurements worth TZS 6,038,332,056. This left 33
procurements equivalent to 67% of the planned procurements, that were not implemented
during the year. :

1.2.2 Compliance with the Budget Act and other Budget Guidelines
Subject matter: Budget formulation and execution

| performed a compliance audit on budget formulation and execution in the Tanzania
Broadcasting Corporation for the financial year 2021/22 as per the Budget Act and other
Budget Guidelines.

Conclusion

Based on the audit work performed, | state that, Budget formulation and execution of
Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation is generally in compliance with the requirements of the
Budget Act and other Budget Guidelines.

Salhina M. Mkumba
Ag. Controller and Auditor General,

Dodoma, United Republic of Tanzania.
April 2023
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TANZANIA BROADCASTING CORPORATION

REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE
2022

INTRODUCTION

The Directors present their report and the financial statements for the financial year
ended 30 June 2022 which; disclose the state of affairs of Tanzania Broadcasting
Corporation (“TBC” or “the Corporation”).

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the Directors as indicated on the statement of

financial Position.

INCORPORATION

Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation (TBC) is a Public Corporation established under the
Public Corporation Act of 1992 CAP 257 and Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation
Establishment Order of 2007 as per Government Notice No. 186 of 2007. Tanzania
Broadcasting Corporation took over both Radio and Television public broadcasting
activities from Tanzania Broadcasting Services upon revocation of the Taasisi ya
Utangazaji Tanzania -TUT (Tanzania Broadcasting Services) Establishment Order of
2002.

VISION

To become prominently African, reliable and trustworthy Public Service Broadcaster
on the continent”.

CORPORATION'S MISSION

To inform, inspire and empower our audiences through interesting trustworthy,
culturally relevant and quality programmes.

Core Values

In achieving its vision and fulfilling its mission, TBC will adhere to the following core
values in order to achieve its Vision and fulfil its Mission:

oCreativity

Integrity
«Professionalism
sTeam-Work
«Respect to Diversity

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Corporation as per establishment are to:

To provide public educational programmes on such issues like development, health,
social welfare and children’s programmes through Radio and Television;
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TANZANIA BROADCASTING CORPORATION

To hold, construct, acquire and install equipment and apparatus for the transmission
and reception of the broadcast signals in the United Republic of Tanzania (URT) and
use the same for the purpose ancillary or related to functions of Tanzania
Broadcasting Corporation;

To develop and extend internal and external broadcasting services in any manner,
means and method, which may, from time to time, be agreed by Tanzania
Broadcasting Corporation and the relevant licensing authority;

To perform broadcasting services in any part of the world for and on behalf of any
department of the Government of URT and, in particular, to provide, erect equipment
and install or supervise the provision, erection, equipping and installation of
technologies and to manage or supervise the working or management of such stations.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Chairman of the Board is appointed by the President of the United Republic of
Tanzania, for a term of three years. The appointment of the rest of the Board
members is done after every three years by the Minister for Information,
Communications and Information Technology as stipulated in the-Establishment Order.
The previous Board’s tenure expired on October 2019. The current Chairman of the
Board of Directors was appointed on 5t August, 2022. The rest of the Board members
appointed in September, 2022.

The Directors of the Corporation appointed are listed below:

Name [ Position Age | Qualifications Area of Experience
b ool yems) | [
[ Stephen  N. |Chairperson | 59 Master of Law Legal Practice
Kagaigai (LL.M) -University Corporate Governance
of Dar es Salaam
Cabinet Secretariat
[ Bachelor of Law Public affairs governance
(LL.B ) -University
| of Dar es Salaam
Tuma Daniel |Vice | 58 MA - International Highly qualified in the media
| Abdallah [Chairperson Relations - UK; industry.  Possesses  vast
n knowledge of the 4
| | PGD International operating realities of the
Relations and Government, public and
Diplomacy - CFR- private institutions,
TZ; Diplomatic Community,
| International organizations,
Diploma in multinational business as
. Journalism - well as NonGovernmental
Tanzania School of | organizations.
Journalism;
Diploma in
Languages-
Institute of
Kiswahili and
S — | |Foreignlanguages- | R—
6
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| Name Position Age Qualifications Area of Experience
(years) 2
B Zanzibar
2. Dr. Cosmas |Director 51 Doctor of Corporate Communications,
Edward Philosophy in Mass | Marketing and Brand
Mwaisobwa Communication - Management, Qualitative
St. Augustine Research, Corporate
Univercity of Governance and Quality
Tanzania control assurance in
{ communication.
Master of Arts in
Mass
‘ Communication -
| St. Augustine
University of
Tanzania
MSc in Community
Economic
Development -
Sourthern New
Hampshire
University,USA
| Bachelor of Library |
and Information
B Science. -
| 3. Dr. |Director 55 PhD in Institutional | Strategist and data analysit, |
! Hildebrand and Resource Investigator, Senior
| EShayo Economics, South Lecturer, Investment and
' Bank University, UK | Asset Management,
' Consultancies/Research
| Master of Reports /Analysis and
Development Publications
| Studies-University
of Dar es Salaam, |
Tanzania 1
BA (Hons) in
| Economics and
' Finance, University
\ of Dar es Salaam,
Tanzania
4, Innocent |Director 56 MA Communications | Strategic communication
Primus Management, and media reputation
Michael London management, Programme
Mungy Metropolitan management. Networking
University skills, and international
relationships.
Public Relations & |
| | Customer Care, Crisis communication

Eastern & Southern

| Africa Management

Institute

Diploma in
Journalism -
Tanzania School of

management, planning and
organizing teams, results- |
based management, drafting |
and execution of :
communications strategies, |
media campaigns both in

traditional and social media. |

Controller and Auditor General
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Name | Position Age | Qualifications Area of Experience
| ) | (years) e
] | Journalism. _

5. Justina |Director 47 Master in A knowledgeable, qualified
Tumaini International | and experienced lawyer with
Mashiba Business Economics | outstanding record in making

and Management - legal determinations,

Brussels Belgium; advising the organisation,
implementing corporate |

Post Graduate structure, procedures and |

| Diploma in documentation.

Leadership by -

UONGOZI

INSTITUTE;

Bachelor of Laws

Degree (LL.B) -

University of Dar es I

Salaam

Mwanjaa Said |Director [ 46 Associate Certified | Preparation of  Financial

Lyezia Public Accountant Statements in accordance
(ACPA) - NBAA with both National and
| Tanzania, International Accounting
| Standards,
| Master of Science Accounting Policy and
| in Accounting and Control, Budgeting and |
Finance - Mzumbe planning, .
University; Safeguarding of Assets,
Accounting Software
Bachelor of Systems,
Commerce - Financial Data Analysis.
University of Dar es
'I | Salaam;
|
Diploma in !
| International Public '
| Accounting '
Standards (IPSAs) - | '
| NBAA Tanzania; |
Certified
Information System
Auditor (CISA) -
Information System
. Audit and Control
5 1 _ B Association (ISACA) o _
Amina Saleh |Director 47 Post Graduate Expert in Media industry.
[ Mollel | Diploma on Community engagement,
Management and management and foreign
| Foreign Relations - | relations, Tourism  and
| Centre for Forein Jounalistic Reporting,
i | Relations Documentary  production,
' ' | (Kusasini); TV/Radio production and
! News Anchor,
Honorary Degree i
for Recognition for |
Being very acting |
' . on Community
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| Name | Position Age | Qualifications Area of Experience
_| (years)

engagement
particularly for
people with
disability - African
Graduate
University;

Bachelor of Arts in
Journalism -
. Tumainy University;

Certificate of
Journalism -
University of Dar Es
Salaam (Institute of
Journalism and
Mass
Communication)

| Tuma Daniel |Vice 58 MA - International Highly qualified in the media
Abdallah Chairperson Relations - UK; industry.  Possesses  vast
knowledge of the 4
PGD International operating realities of the

Relations and Government, public and
Diplomacy - CFR- private institutions,
TZ; | Diplomatic Community,
International organizations,
Diploma in multinational business as
| Journalism - well as NonGovernmental
Tanzania School of | organizations.
Journalism;
Diploma in
Languages-
Institute of

Kiswahili and
Foreign Languages -

| B | Zanzibar -

7. Dr. Ayub [Secretary to| 54 PhD in Mas Comm - | ¢ Print Journalism
Rioba the Board University of e Broadcast journalism
Chacha | LG « Online/digital

journalism

Licentiate in Mas :
Comm- University | ® Strategic

of Tampere; communication
governance
MA in Journalism - | e Corporate governance
University of Wales and reforms
' (Cardiff); e Lecturer in:
- Newswriting
il Broadcasting

| degree - Makerere

| University Kampala Journalism ethics

Current affairs analyst
| Pan Africanist

Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/TBC/2021/22
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2.7 BOARD COMMITEES

The Board functions through three committees. These are Audit committee, Finance
and administration and Media Content, Editorial and Technical Services Committees.
All committees report to the Board to ensure a high standard of corporate governance
throughout the time.

Finance and Administration Committee comprise of:

Name Position Nationality
Dr. Hildebrand E Shayo Chairperson Tanzanian
Dr. Cosmas Edward Mwaisobwa Member Tanzanian
Innocent Primus Michael Mungy Member Tanzanian
Amina Saleh Mollel Member Tanzanian
Dr. Ayub Rioba Chacha Secretary Tanzanian

Audit Committee comprise of:

Name Position Nationality
Mwanjaa Said Lyezia Chairperson Tanzanian
Justina Tumaini Mashiba Member Tanzanian
Tuma Daniel Abdallah Member Tanzanian
Dr. Ayub Rioba Chacha Secretary Tanzanian

Media Contents, Editorial Policy and Technical Services Committee comprise of:

Name Position Nationality
Dr. Cosmas Edward Mwaisobwa Chairperson Tanzanian
Innocent Primus Michael Mungy Member Tanzanian
Amina Saleh Mollel Member Tanzanian
Dr. Ayub Rioba Chacha Secretary Tanzanian

2.8 BOARD EXPENSES

There was no Board expenses during the year (2021: NIL). The fact that there were no
Board of Directors during the respective periods.

2.9 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
a) Code of Corporate Practice and Conduct

Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation is committed to the principles of effective
corporate governance and the Board is of the opinion that the Corporation currently
complies with principles of good Corporate Governance.

b) The Board of Directors

The Board of Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation appointed in September 2022 consists
of chairperson and seven Directors. Apart from the Secretary to the Board who is the
Director General; none of the Directors hold executive positions in the Corporation.
The Board takes overall responsibility for the Corporation, including responsibility for

10
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managing key risk areas, considering and monitoring investment decisions, significant
financial matters and reviewing the performance of management against budgets and
business plans. TBC had no Board of Directors during the period under review and the
responsibility was charged to the Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Information,
Communications and Information Technology . The Permanent Secretary is also
responsible for ensuring that a comprehensive system of internal control policies and
procedures is operative for compliance with sound corporate governance principles.

The Board is chaired by a director who has no executive functions. The Board is
confident that its members have the knowledge, talent and experience to lead the
Corporation. The non-executive directors are independent of management and
exercise their independent judgment. With their depth of experience, they add value
to Board deliberations.

The Board is required to meet at least four times a year and oversee the management
of the business.

The Director General of the Corporation reports to the Board and enjoys all executive
powers. In the year under review where the Corporation had no Board of Directors,
the Director General reports to the Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Information,
Communication and Information Technology. The Director General is assisted by
senior management officers in the day to day operations of the Corporation. The
Director General and other Senior Management staff are invited to attend Board
meetings and facilitate the effective control of all the Corporation’s operational
activities, acting as a medium of communication and coordination between the
various business units.

Also Senior Management meets on a weekly basis to review the results, operations,
key financial indicators and the business strategy of the Corporation.

c) Performance evaluation and reward

Details of the remuneration paid to key management staff are disclosed in Note 31 to
the financial statements. The Corporation ensures that Tanzanian Government Scale
related salaries are paid and related trends are followed in terms of changes in
benefits, while at the same time taking into account the intrinsic value of individual
contributions.

d) Risk management and internal control

The Board accepts final responsibility for the risk management and internat control
systems of the Corporation. It is the task of management to ensure that adequate
internal financial and operational control systems are developed and maintained on an
on-going basis in order to provide reasonable assurance regarding the effectiveness
and efficiency of operations in:

e The safeguarding of the Corporation’s assets (including information);
e Contribution of TBC as a Partner for cost of Broadcasting equipment and
production of contents for Tanzania Safari Channel;

11
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e Improvement of TBC1, Safari & TBC2 Television Channels Outlook;

e Procurement of Tricater System, Character Generator (CG) and Television
Monitoring System; and

o Responsible behaviour towards all stakeholders.

The efficiency of any internal control system is dependent on the strict observance of
prescribed measures. There is always a risk of non-compliance with such measures by
staff. Consequently, even a strict and efficient internal control system can provide no
more than a reasonable measure of assurance in respect of the above-mentioned
objective. During the year under .review, appropriate corrective and preventive
measures were taken to improve the systems and procedures or plug the lapses.

Key elements of the system of internal control are as follows:-

Budgets

Detailed annual budgets are prepared by Management and discussed by the Workers
Council and later submitted to the Finance and Administration Committee of the
Board for review and subsequently approved by the Board. In the absence of the Board
the budget is approved by the Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Information,
Communication and Information Technology.

Competence

Staff skills are maintained both by a formal recruitment process and a performance
appraisal system, which identifies training needs. Also necessary training, both in-
house and externally, helps to consolidate existing staff skills and competences.

Internal Audit

The unit reports functionally to the Board Audit Committee and administratively to
the Director General. It assesses risk and reviews controls. The unit ensures that
recommendations to improve controls are implemented by the Management.

There was no board of Directors during the year under review. The Permanent
Secretary assessed the internal control systems throughout for the period ended 30
June 2022 and is of the opinion that they met acceptable criteria.

Business ethics and organisational integrity

The Corporation’s Code of Conduct commits it to the highest standards of integrity,
conduct and ethics in its dealings with all parties concerned, including its Directors,
managers, employees, customers, suppliers, competitors, investors and the public in
general. The Directors and staff are expected to fulfil their ethical obligations in such
a way that the business is run strictly according to laid out policies and procedures.

12

Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/TBC/2021/22



TANZANIA BROADCASTING CORPORATION

Financial reporting and auditing

The Management accept final responsibility for the preparation of the annual financial
statements which fairly present:

The financial position of the Corporation as at the end of the year under review;

» The financial results of operations; and
e The cash flows for that period.

The responsibility for compiling the annual financial statements is vested in the
management and the Corporation complied with all applicable laws of the country of
incorporation. The external auditors of the Corporation report on whether or not the
annual financial statements are fairly presented.

The Management is satisfied that during the year under review, the Corporation has
ensured:

o Adequate accounting records were maintained;

e Effective system of internal control and risk management, monitored by
management, was maintained;

« Appropriate accounting policies, supported by reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates, were used consistently; and

e Financial statements were compiled in accordance with International Public
Sector Accounting Standards and in the manner required by the Tanzanian Public
Finance Act No. 6 of 2001 and instructions issued by the Treasury in respect of the
year under review.

The Directors are also satisfied that no material event has occurred between the
financial year-end and the date of this report which affects the business or has not
been reported.

2.10 MANAGEMENT

The Management of the Corporation is headed by the Director General and is
organized in the following divisions/departments:

(i) Television;

(ii) Radio;

(iif)Technical Services;

(iv) News and Current Affairs.

(v) Finance and Accounts;

(vi)Human Resources and Administration; and
(vii) Marketing.

There are five functional units under the Director General’s Office as follows:
(a) Internal Audit;

(b) Legal Affairs;

(c) Procurement Management Unit (PMU);

13
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(d) Planning and Development; and
(e) Corporate Communications.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

TBC will continue to improve its viewership through the introduction of innovative
products, focusing on value-added customer services and expansion of its stations
while carefully managing both costs and risks.

In the Financial Year 2022/23 TBC has planned to implement the following projects: -

e Construct Seven (9) New FM Radio Transmitting Stations to improve Radio
Coverage in Kalambo - Rukwa, Liwale - Lindj, Rufiji - Pwani, Kakonko/Nyakanazi -
Kagera, Mfundi - Iringa, Kaliua - Tabora, Igunga - Tabora, Manyoni - Singida na
Karatu - Manyara;

o Improve TBC1 & TBC2 Television Channels Outlook - Dodoma Television studio;

e Rehabilitation of TBC radio studios Phase I, by deploying new system and phase
out analog systems;

e Procurement of equipment for Tanzania Safari Channel operations;

e Procurement of ICT systems to facilitate operations;

e Procurement of working equipment, systems and software for TBC digital Media
(TBCOnline);

e Procurement for outside broadcasting equipment for both Television and Radio;

o Procurement of ICT system for TBC English Service online TV to facilitate
international coverage;

o Rehabilitation of TBC existing building countrywide;

o Procurements of Vehicles for transportation activities for best service delivery
within the corporation mandate countrywide; and

e To enhance Project monitoring and Evaluation (M & E) for all projects;

o TBC has also plans to solicit other grants in form of financial or studio equipment
from various development partners that will enhance TBC’s expansion projects.

2.12 DIVIDEND

2.13

TBC do not pay dividends. However, contribution amounting to TZS 50 million was
made to the Government. (2021/22 TZS 50 million).

PERFORMANCE FOR THE PERIOD

The detailed financial performance of the Corporation during the year is set out on
statement of financial performance showing a surplus of TZS 8.2 billion (2021: Surplus
TZS 531.5 million). The Corporation incur impairment loss on its non-current assets

during the period.

The financial statements present: statement of financial position, statement of
financial performance, statement of changes in net asset/equity, cash flow
statement, statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts and notes to the
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financial statements of Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation as at financial reporting
period that ended 30 June 2022 (1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022).

Statement of Financial Performance

Operating surplus increase by 1434% mainly resulted from the grants’ fund utilised
during the year.

a) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

During the year other charges (OC) received from the Government was TZS.
3,911,550,000.00 (2021: TZS. 4,200,000,000.00) decrease by 7%.

Personal emolument received during the year is TZS. 10,600,911,612.5 (2021: TZS.
9,366,130,936). The extra 12% received was in respect of salary increase following
the change of salary scale from PGSS to TBCSS with effect from June, 2022.

Capital Grants utilizes during the year is TZS. 11.8 billion (2021: TZS. 3.1 billion).
Increased by 281% which resulted from capitalization of PPE fund that were not
utilised and recorded as deferred income in 2020/2021, being development fund
received from the Government, UCSAF, Safari Channel Stakeholders and
capitalisation of non Monetary Grants received from South Korea.

b) Revenue from exchange Transactions

Total revenue from exchange transactions for the year ended 30 June 2022 was TZS
8.7 billion (2021: TZS 11.3 billion) net from sales commission and discount which
decreased by 22%. In 2020/2021 TBC received fund TZS. 2,500,000,000.00 from Star
media Tanzania limited to compasate for the TBC property used by Star media.

c) Expenses

Total expenses for the year ended 30 June 2022 was TZS 27.087 billion (2021: TZS
27.896 billion). The decreased by 3% is a result of the Corporation cost cutting
measures which led into reduction in expenses.

1.12.2 Statement of Financial Position

a) Cash and Cash Equivalent

Total cash and cash equivalent as at 30 June 2022 was TZS. 6.7 billion (2021: TZS.
9.8billion) comprises TZS 6.6 billion at bank and TZS 938,300.00 cash in hand. The
decrease of 31% is primarily being fund utilised to implement development
projects.

b) Inventories

Total inventories as at 30 June 2022 was TZS 78.5 million (2021: TZS. 84 million)
decreased by 7% resulting from increase of activity levels during the period.
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c) Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

A total of TZS 6.3 billion was invested in capital expenditure during the year
compared to TZS 4.59 billion invested in the year ended 30 June 2021, increased by
37%. Resulted to the carring amount of TZS. 88 billion (2021: TZS. 83 million) The
Increase was due to Increase completion of Development projects during the
period.

d) Intangible Assets

There were no Intangible assets acquired during the year. (2021: NIL)

e) Trade and other Payables

Total outstanding trade and other payables as at 30 June 2022 was TZS 8.45 billion
(2021: TZS 9.75 billion) which decreased by 13%. The decrease was due to the plan
made by the Corporation to pay outstanding debts and reduce to the minimum the
increase of new debts.

f) Bank Overdraft

There was no bank overdraft as at 30 June 2022 (2021: TZS 249,355,553) The full
amount of overdraft saved during the year was settled on 30" June, 2022.

1.12.3 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow Statement comprises of cash-flow from operating activity, Cash-flow from
investing activity and Cash-flow from financing activity.

a) Cash-flow from Operating Activity

The Corporation reported cash generated from operations activity for the year
ended 30 June 2022 was TZS 3.14 billion (2021: TZS 10.38 billion) which decrease
by 69%. The deccrease was due to timely utilisation of fund received during the
year under review.

b) Cash-flow from Investing Activity

Total cash flow from investing activity for the year ended 30 June 2022 was TZS
6.3billion (2021: TZS 4.59billion) which Increased by 37%. The Increase was due to
Increase completion of Development projects during the period.

c) Cash-flow from Financing Activity

There was no cash flow from financing activity for the year ended 30 June 2022
(2021: TZS Nil).
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2.14 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Board of Directors; the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Corporation was
appointed in August, 2022 by the President of the United of Republic of Tanzania and
the Board members was appointed in September, 2022. There were no other
subsequent events that have occurred which are either to be disclosed or to be
adjusted in the financial statements that could materially affect these financial
statements.

2.15 SOLVENCY

The Board of Directors confirms that applicable accounting standards have been
followed and the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
with a reasonable expectation that Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation, a public
Broadcaster, has adequate resources to continue its operational existence in the
foreseeable future.

2.16  STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP

TBC is a public broadcaster and as such it has a diverse group of stakeholders. The
Corporation recognizes the importance of addressing the needs of its key stakeholders
in order to add value, satisfy their needs and expectations to fulfil its mission. The
stakeholders of TBC are those who have interest in or are directly or indirectly
affected by the operations of the Corporation. TBC stakeholders can be broadly
categorized into:

(a) The government

(b) The general public

(c) Regulators

(d) The Parliament and its committees
(e) Political Parties

(f) Employees

(g) Other media houses

(h) The International media

(i) Customers

(j) Suppliers and Service Providers

(a) The Government

TBC is a public broadcaster and therefore, part of its operations is funded by
taxpayers. This funding goes into capital investments such as machines and
equipment. Government subvention also pays for TBC staff salaries and other charges.
The government expects that TBC will strive to provide the public with quality
reporting and information in all areas of Tanzania. The government expects TBC
programming to be diverse and to appeal to a variety of citizens from all walks of life.
TBC programming is expected to include local, national and international news and
current affairs, arts, business, children’s programs, drama, education, entertainment,
features, history, music, religion, science, technology, and sports.
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The government also expects TBC to account for funds they receive to support its
operations. TBC is expected to adhere to the pillars of value for money that govern
use of public funds. TBC has to demonstrate economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
use of public funds.

(b) The General Public

TBC is expected to reach a wider audience in all parts of the country. Since TBC
operations are financed by public funds, then citizens view TBC as their broadcaster
and they expect TBC to respond to their needs for news, information and
entertainment. TBC’s reach to a wider audience is constrained by low earning power
of many people especially in rural areas who cannot afford to buy a radio or a TV set
and now a decoder. Furthermore, TBC’s reach is constrained by lack of access to
modern energy sources such as electricity in many parts of the country.

The general public expects TBC programming to appeal to tastes and preferences of
different people in the population. It is expected that TBC will have programs for
sports lovers, various music genres, and programs for children, farmers, workers,
programs for religion and culture, and drama and feature films for entertainment. So
far TBC is doing well in meeting expectations of the public. It has programs that cater
for the needs of different groups of people in the population. However, there is wide
room for improvements. The public also expects TBC content and reporting to be fair,
accurate, truthful, impartial and non-discriminatory

(c) Regulators

The regulator like the Tanzania Communication and Regulatory Authority (TRCA) has
been charged with the responsibility of overseeing the broadcasting sector in the
country. TCRA issues, policies, regulations, circulars and guidelines, which govern the
conduct of content service

providers. It is expected that TBC will honour its duties and responsibilities as they
have been identified in the TCRA Act, the EPOCA and the Establishment Order.

(d) The Parliament and its committees

The parliament has legislative responsibilities and also supervisory responsibility on
the executive branch, which is the government. The parliament relies on the media to
educate people on various issues that affect their daily lives. It also relies on the
media to provide correct and reliable information to the electorate on how the
parliament is representing them and the process with which the parliament enacts
different laws, which ultimately affect the lives of every citizen. TBC is expected to
play a major role in education and information dissemination to voters.

On the other hand, the Parliament Steering Committees expect TBC to perform its
activities fairly in compliance with existing laws, regulations and procedures governing
the use of public resources.
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(e) Political parties

All political parties expect to freely air their views through TBC within the accepted
editorial policy of the corporation.

(f) TBC Employees

Employees play an important role in contributing to the long-term success and
performance of corporation. They understand that their participation on the affairs of
the corporation contributes to the shareholder’s value maximization. They expect that
strategic management decisions are . applied in a way that scarce resources available
to the corporation are utilized in a way in the most efficient manner.

Employees expect right to consultation on certain management decisions, duties of
Board and management to consider stakeholders interests, right to hold
management/board responsible, access to information, wages, stable employment
and promotion

(g) Other media houses

TBC is the oldest media house in the country and as such, it has accumulated years of
experience in the broadcasting sector with a good number of qualified personnel
(journalists, technical and presenters). TBC is expected to be a leading media house in
upholding professional ethics in its operations. TBC is expected to work in a
competitive environment with commercial, community and religious broadcasters
cooperating and competing in harmony for viewers and commercial customers, taking
them as a challenge for the benefit of all stakeholders.

(h) The International media

TBC status as a public broadcaster gives it a good opportunity to collaborate with
other public broadcasters in the neighbouring countries and overseas. Authentic
content, which portrays the customs and cultures of people of Tanzania, is expected
to come from TBC. Sharing experience and technical expertise can be done through
such partnerships. Tanzania is regarded as the home ground for Kiswahili language.
Kiswahili is spoken widely in East and Central Africa and it has also gained popularity
in other parts of the world. TBC has an opportunity to take advantage of Kiswabhili
language to form partnerships with international media houses in developing countries
and delivering content that appeals to Kiswahili listeners and viewers throughout the
world.

(i) Customers

TBC customers range from Ministries, Departments and Agencies (MDAs), NGOs, CBOs,
private companies, politicians and private citizens. MDAs, NGOs and CBOs expect TBC
to publicize their work and inform the public how they tackle different issues that
affect lives of Tanzanians. Private companies expect TBC to air their advertisements
to the chosen audience in the agreed schedule. They also expect TBC to give their
side of the story in case of conflicts between the companies and the public. Politicians
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and private citizens expect TBC to make their voices heard. Also TBC customers
expect exceptional customer service and relationships and upholding of good practices
of doing business.

Suppliers and Service Providers

Suppliers and Service Providers contribute to the corporation by providing reliable
materials, component parts or other services that allow the organization to
reduce uncertainty in its technical, news gathering or production operations, thus
allowing for both normal and cost efficiencies. They therefore have a direct effect on
the organization’s efficiency and an indirect effect on its ability to attract customers.
They expect prompt compensation for their supplies.

CORPORATION’ STRATEGIES
The Corporation has set the following strategies:

e To enhance financial capacity and sustainability;

» To deploy appropriate technology for broadcasting services;

e To create quality content and programming for all TBC channels; and

e To ensure effective and efficient Management and Human Resource systems.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The key performance indicators used by the directors in assessing the progress against
the following Corporation objectives:

To enhance financial capacity and sustainability

This involves consideration of different options that can assure flow of finance to
meet both recurrent and development commitments. TBC’s main goal is to ensure it
remains a financially sustainable organisation, by growing its revenue base through
various traditional and innovative new sources whilst prudently managing its costs. As
a public broadcaster, TBC needs to have reliable, growing, independent and
sustainable sources of financing. Growing profit is not the TBC's key objective. Rather,
it is focused on ensuring the Corporation maintains liquidity and is continually able to
fund its mandate:

(a) Development of reliable and independent sources of financing TBC
activities
Strategies ' T Target Actual 2021/22 Actual
Performance indicators 2024/22 2020/24
Development | Liquidity ratios o N - T )
of reliable | Current ratio | > 1.3:1 | 1.4:1
and | |
independent : Acid test ratio > 1 1.3:1 1.4:1
sources of
| public |
financing
20
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Attract more | Successful Projects' One (1) |One (1) Projects| Two (2)
development | Proposals for Projects |Proposals Projects
partners’ broadcasting services Proposals Proposals
funding funded by

Development partners

Source: Strategic Plan 2019/2020 -2023/2024

TBC is working tireless to make sure that funds are obtained through various sources.
During the year TBC received fund from UCSAF for the procurement of Radio Studio
Equipment in Radio Jamii TZS. 1.077 billion. (2020/21: TZS. 1.965 billion) through
business proposal. During the year TBC Capitalize TBC2 buildings and studio
equipments funded by South Korea TZS. 2.7 billion.

Improvement of Revenue stream from traditional sources and online platforms.

Performance | Target | Actual 2021/22 | Actual 2020/2021 |
indicators | 2021/22 |
Improvement  of | Annual 2% 25% Decrease 29% Increase
Revenue  stream | revenue
from traditional | growth
sources and online

platforms Revenue |
growth target ‘
Source: Strategic Plan 2019/2020 -2023/2024

Strategies

TBC is using website as another avenue of revenue generation. Online broadcasting
services is another new stream of revenue generation. TBC radio and television have
been using website for live streaming hence attracting advertisers and sponsors. As at
30 June 2022 live coverage continued to be one of the sources of revenue generation.
However during the year TBC aired free live coverage for the public interest cost more
than TZS 5 billion.

(b) Achieve a steady increase in market penetration

| Strategies | Performance I Target 2021/22 | Actual performance
|

indicators | |
Achieve a | market share | First ranking in| TBC1 market share increased |
steady from market share from | dramatically from 21%
increase in | independent | independent | (2020/2021) to 28% as at 30 June, |
market bodies bodies | 2022. This trend remains steady
| penetration | in the due to improved creative |

‘ News & Current Affairs (ARIDHIO)

and New JAMBO Program segment |

| TBC2 probrammes which are |
mostly intended for youth.

TBC Taifa were ranked first (15%)
on a sample survey of 20 radio |
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Performance
indicators

 Strategies

Target 2021/22 Actual performance |

Stations - data obtained from al
scientific  research company
(Geopoll Media Measurement).
This is a massive share as a result
of its coverage, trustworthy andl
reliability. (No change of this
data has obtained to the end of
this reporting period 2021/2022 )

Source: Strategic Plan 2019/2020 -2023/2024

indicator/ Target

a) Acquisition of appropriate
technology to  improve
broadcasting services

adcasting services;

Actual performance as at 30 June 2022
Various broadcasting equipment have been procured for the year |
2021/22 to ensure daily operations of TBC. The procured equipment ‘
includes professional cameras, Live- U and Quantum wide for live
production, computers and FLY AWAY used for broadcasting

activities.

b). Effective utilization of
appropriate technology and |
infrastructure in support of
digital migration (DTT/DTH)

TBC strengthen the use of IT technology to meet its daily operations._
News reporting, transmission and broadcasting is done through Digital
media (TBCOnline LIVE). Broadcasting of TBC news and sports is |
much done through Optical fiber cable to whom TBC is connected.
TBC is using radio streaming on its website (www.tbc.g0.tz7,
www.tanzaniasafarichannel) and application platform. All radio
channels (TBC Taifa, TBC FM, and TBC International) have live
programs. TBC is also using Live-U and Quantum Wide technology
during live coverage to areas where OB-Van cannot reach. '

2.17.3To create quality content and programming for all TBC channels;

. information,

Target
(@) To ensure delivery of
diversified quality
attractive
program formats and
engaging zonal offices to
produce features and

| documentaries on different

issues;

| Actual performance

TBC is mandated to produce educative and entertainment
programs. For the period of July- June, 2022 TBC prepared and
aired various programs on education (245), entertainment and
sports (1614), research (95), Health (143), arts and culture
| (166), Youth and special group (245). The programs are in line |
with CCM manifesto (2020 - 2025), Five-Year Development Plan

‘ (FYDP lll), Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and
Government focus on industriatization.

(b) To inspire the youth
through engaging programs by

| production of well packaged
| Youth programs on all TBC

media outlets.

" TBC viewers and listeners can follow news through twitter,
Facebook, YouTube and Instagram. There is a website for news |
already developed and in use. During the period 245 youth
programs on TBCTaifa, 2,627 youth program on TBCFM, 720
youth program on TBCInternational, 1920 youth program from '
Community radio - Arusha, 760 youth program from community
radio - Dodoma
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Target | Actual performance _
{c) Coverage of all National | TBC covered all national events through live broadcasting for
events for both radio and | both radio and television. Under the period of review TBC1 Aired
Television 532 LIVE coverage with a total of 848 hours. On the other hand
TBC Taifa aired 395 LIVE coverage with a total of 595 hours.

"(d) Increase Radio and | TBC completed registration of TBC3 (Tanzania Safari Channel)
Television Coverage | and TBC2 as a Free to Air Channel (FTA). Currently, radio
countrywide | coverage for TBC has increased from 102 (63%) districts in 2020
to 134 districts (83%) in 2022 out of 161 districts countrywide.
TBC also is available on social media (Twitter, Instagram,
Facebook and its website: www.tbc.go.tz) where viewers and
listeners can access TBC channel worldwide. [
During the period Tanzania Safari Channel prepared and aired
268 local programs suit both local and international market. This
is above the target of 240 programs. Currently Tanzania safari
channel can be viewed through DSTV, AZAM, STARTIMES, ZUKU,
CONTINETAL, ZMUX and other social media Platforms. Soon,
Tanzania Safari Channel will be transcribing programs in five
languages; English, Chinese, Portuguese, Arabic and French.

“(e) Promote tourism through
various programs

| (f) Create opportunities for During the period under review TBC Taifa producEd 4688 local
the public to submit local contents in various aspects: Health (143), Economics (37), Arts
content and culture (166), Youth (245), Legal (42), Technology and

| innovation (46), Politics (46), Entertainments (1614), Live
interactive program from studio (48), Research (95),
Environments (92), Gender based programs (89) and Agriculture
(43). TBC FM aired a total of 2627 programs, TBC International
720 program, TBC community radio Arusha 1920 program, TBC
| community radio Dodoma 760 program and 1984 Religious

programs were prepared and aired by TBC Taifa. On the other

hand TBC prepared and aired 93 special programs and 82
| WASHITIRI program.

(g) Develop and implement TBC is using saver-based studio for archiving its contents for

digital library workflows and both radio, television and social media. All produced contents

infrastructure for TBC are stored into automatic digital system installed with a support |
| content. | of retrieval system for future reference. '

Source: Strategic Plan 2019/2020 -2023/2024

2.17.4To ensure effective and efficient Management and Human Resource systems

[ During the period of July - June, 2022 a total of 299 staff attended
|short courses and training on different professions. 1% Quarter
(i) Strengthening | (61), 2™ Quarter (78), 3" Quarter (73) and 4™ Quarter (87). The
the training and | training was intended to build capacity of staff in both core and
development of | supporting function of the corporation such as: Finance,
employees. information Technology, radio and Television Production

techniques, journalism, engineering, procurement, human resource
. management, administration, auditing, broadcasting etc.
Source: Strategic Plan 2019/2020 -2023/2024 R
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| Actual
Target | implementation Actual Implementation
Description s (%) (%)2021/22 (%) 2020/21
Long term traihing courses NIL NIL NIL
“Short term training courses 100% | 83% 99.7%

2.18

(i) To improve | TBC has émproved_ working environment to employees, modernised

working office and working tools and devised mechanism to protect its
environment equipment from damage. All TBC staff are connected via staff mail

whereby all information are shared in efficient manner. News

B ___bulletins._Curren'Ely_this__te_chnologx_is_used at Dodoma itudio.
Source: Strategic Plan 2019/2020 -2023/2024

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS STRENGTHS AND RESOURCES

Apart from items indicated in the statement of financial position, TBC has other
strengths and resources that assist in pursuing its objectives. The presence of trained
and talented staff in the area of news and current affairs, program production,
engineering, finance and accounts, audit, marketing, legal, procurement, corporate
communication, human resources management and information communication
technology (ICT) enables the organization to achieve its objectives smoothly.

In preserving the national history, the organization is the sole National archive for
audio and visual contents. Presence of heritage assets which demonstrate the
evolution of broadcasting industry is another major resource. TBC is also privileged to
own plots and buildings in prime areas at all regions in Tanzania.

Affiliation with other international broadcasting houses like BBC, CCTV, RFI, NHK, and
UN Radio, and membership in various international broadcasting unions like African
Union of Broadcasters (AUB), Southern Africa Broadcasters Association (SABA) and
Public Media Alliance (PMA), is strength the organization is proud of.

The organization also has got wide coverage (Musty carry channels, Rich in Rural
areas) and leadership in reach, viewership and unique educational programs in
Tanzania.

Credibility and trustworthy (Public broadcaster, formal operations) TBC holds a
positive image and goodwill from majority of Tanzanians as a reliable public
broadcaster.

Migration from analogue to digital television broadcasting via its Joint Venture
Company (Star Media Tanzania Limited) digital platform is another milestone.

Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/TBC/2021/22
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The annual financial statements are prepared on the underlying assumption of a going
concern. The Corporation’s accounting policies, which are laid out are subject to an
annual review to ensure continuing compliance with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Corporation has not taken over the management of or acquired a stake in any
Corporation during the period under review. (2020/2021 - Four Motor vehicles were

disposed).
INVESTMENTS
a) Investment in property and equipment

Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation is focused on continued investment in
equipment for expansion of its media services in branches across the various
regions in Tanzania. Details of investment in property and equipment are detailed
in Note 30 to the financial statements.

b) Investment in Star Media (Tanzania) Limited

According to the shareholders agreement, TBC has 35% equity shareholding with
equivalent voting power in Star Media (Tanzania) Limited, which is a joint venture
with Star Communication Network Technologies Company Ltd, Beijing, an
agreement which was entered into on 31 May 2009. TBC is entitled to a
proportionate share of the proceedings.

RISK ASSESSMENT

The Management understands the specific sources of risk and analysis of their impact
on its operations to TBC. In the financial year 2021/22 the Management used risk
assessment frameworks to enable the analysis of cost effective mitigation strategies.
Among the types of risks that the Management is aware of and their mitigation
strategies are provided here below:

| Type of risk | Cause ) | Management

Strategic Migration from analogue to | TBC has improved its quality of content
digital  broadcasting  have produced for both Radio and Television
increased reach of some |in order to attract listenership and
television stations that they | Viewership.

could not have before -hence
intensified the level of |
competition into quality
- content production. _
Commercial Loosing customer Increasing customer care and providing
quality services

Growing number of
broadcasters both locally and | TBC has installed FM transmitters in
regionally l_\/ariOLg areas for the purpose to increase

—
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[ Type of risk Cause | Management |
! e The dilemma in balancing | Radio Coverage. Radio and Television |
the national priorities as a | Studio has been installed in TBC zones.
national  broadcaster and | Currently Community Radio studio has
meeting the demand for | been installed in Arusha. Other TBC zonal |
commercial operations Radio studios are in Dodoma, Kigoma,
Songea and Lindi.
TBC2, TBC3 (Tanzania Safari), TBCFM and
TBC International has been strengthened
to meet National obligation as the Public
» - _ - media. i
Operational Monetary loss resulting from: Improving quality of working tools, !
systems and processes:
e Inadequate or failed | e Procured portable Broadcasting
internal processes, people, | equipment in order to manage LIVE
and systems or from external | coverage whenever need arise.
events o Provide regular training to staff
e Rapid development by |to attain more technical skills hence |
competitors in terms of | increase creativity and work
equipment and production of | performance. '
creative radio and television
- lprogram, _ § _
Financial - | Depreciation of foreign | Transacting using local currency and
currency and | currency and likelihood of | credit rating, establishing credit limits,
credit risk | default. encourage upfront payment.
| Compliance Adverse change in regulations | Be optimistic and well informed about
| guiding operation. government legislations and decisions.
Liquidity/funding | Receiving less funds to meet Establishing contingency plans, such as
organization’s obligations. backup lines of credit (OD facility),
| grants and new profitable investments.

Source: Risk Assessment Register
EMPLOYEES' WELFARE
Management and Employees' Relationship

A healthy relationship continues to exist between management and employees. There
were no unresolved complaints received by Management from the employees during

the year.

The Corporation is an equal opportunity employer. It gives equal access to
employment opportunities and ensures that the best available person is appointed to
any given position, free from discrimination of any kind and without regard to factors
like gender, marital status, tribe, religion or disability.

b) Training Facilities

During the year 2021/22, the Corporation set aside a sum of TZS 421 million for
training in order to improve employees’ technical skills and effectiveness (2020/21:
TZS 459.3 million). The Corporation was effectively implementing the budget by 83%,
TZS 349 million (2020/2021: by 99.7%, TZS. 457.9 million). Training programs are
continually being developed to ensure employees are adequately trained at all levels
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and every employee has some form of trai ning to upgrade relevant skills and enhance
personal development. Seventy-four employees were trained in various short courses
in the year under review.

c) Health and Safety

The Corporation has a health and safety policy of xxxxx which ensures a safe working
environment for all employees and contractors by providing adequate and necessary
personal protective gears and training.

Medical Services

All members of staff and their dependants’ not exceeding four members from each
beneficiary have access to medical insurance scheme guaranteed by the Corporation.
Currently the services are provided by National Health Insurance Fund (NHIF). The
corporation gives medical assistance to employees for the services which are not
covered by the NHIF. During the year TZS 30,200,000/= were paid to assist employees
for the services which are not covered by the NHIF (2020/2021 TZS 3,095,647).

d) Financial Assistance to Staff

Loans are available to all confirmed employees through the Savings and Credit Co-
operative Society (SACCOS) to assist in promoting the welfare of its employees.
Management also guarantees staff for loans from banks and financial institutions and
avails monthly deductions to lenders as agreed with both parties.

e) Persons with Disabilities

It remains the Corporation’s policy to accept disabled persons for employment for
those vacancies that they are able to fill. Opportunities for advancement are provided
to each disabled person when a suitable vacancy arises within the organisation and all
necessary assistance is given along with initial training. Where an employee becomes
disabled during the course of his or her employment, the Corporation provides
suitable alternate employment and necessary training thereof. The Corporation’s
policy is not discriminatory against people with regards to race, gender, religion or
disability.

f) Retirement Benefits

The Corporation pays contributions to public administered pension schemes on
mandatory basis. The number of employees benefiting from the scheme as at 30 June
2022 was 548 employees (2021: 562 employees).

2.24 GENDER PARITY

The Corporation has 548 employees (2021: 562 employees), out of whom 182 are
female and 365 are male (2021: 168 are female and 394 are male). At the
management level, female officers are 9 and male officers are 6 (2021: 5 female
officers and 9 male officers).
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2.25 SOCIAL AND POLITICAL DONATIONS

The Corporation did not make any political donations during the year. Donations made to
charitable organizations during the year amounted TZS 9.6 million (2020/2021: TZS 17.08
million). TBC also contribute to the Government TZS. 50 million (2021: TZS. 50 million).

2.26 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

TBC’s Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) links its broadcast content to broad national
development themes. Through our Radio and Television pltatforms, the TBC actively gets
involved in issues of national importance such as HIV/Aids, youth and cultural matters,
education development, commerce, disability, women'’s issues, community development
and environmental projects.

2.27 ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL PROGRAMME

The fundamental principles of the Corporation environmental and social policy are as
follows: (i) Comply with local regulations and identify relevant social and environmental
issues prevailing in Tanzania; (ii) Respect fundamental human and social principles, based
on International Conventions; (iii) Increase awareness of environmental issues among
employees and clients; (iv) Constantly seek to refine social and environmental practices.

2.28 COMMITMENTS

During the year ended 30 June 2022 total commitment was TZS 6.4 billion (2021: TZS 9.17
billion). The projects are expected to be completed in the next financial year.

2.29 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE.

Key Management personnel as defined by International Public Sector Accounting Standard
IPSAS-20. Related party disclosure of TBC (Vote TR-061) are:- Board of Directors, Senior
Management Team, Social Security Contributions and Star times. There was no related
party transactions during the year ended 30 June 2022 (2021: NIL).

2,30 AUDITORS

The Controller and Auditor General (CAG) is the statutory auditor of the Tanzania
Broadcasting Corporation (TBC) by virtue of Article 143 of the Constitution of the United
Republic of Tanzania as amplified under Public Audit Act, Cap. 418.

BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD
Pl

- S N}\WOQ, 1923

Stephen N. Kagaigat- M Date
BOARD CHAIRMAN

—r 25 M) 2023

Dr. Ayub Rioba Chacha Date
DIRECTOR GENERAL
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STATEMENT OF REAPONSIBILITIES BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Section 30(4) of the Public Finance Act, cap 348 requires directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Corporation as at the end of the financial year and of its surplus or deficit for the year. It also
requires the directors to ensure that the Corporation keeps proper accounting records that
disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Corporation. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and hence taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud, error and other irregularities.

The directors accept responsibility for the financial statements, which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates, in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) and
the requirements of the Tanzanian Public Finance Act and the Tanzania Broadcasting
Corporation Establishment Order of 2007. The directors are of the opinion that the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the Corporation
and of its surplus in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).

The directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that
may be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due
to fraud or error.

The going concern basis of preparing financial statements is adopted on the basis of the
explanation provided in Note 2 to the financial statements.

BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD

e 2EUS f 2023
Stephen N. Kagaigai — Date

BOARD CHAIRMAN

@“9 725 (\/zﬂm&( 028

Dr. Ayub Rioba Chacha Date
DIRECTOR GENERAL
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DECLARATION OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND ACCOUNTS OF TANZANIA
BROADCASTING CORPORATION

The Nation Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) according to the power conferred under
the Auditors and Accountants (Registration) Act. No. 33 of 1972, as amended by Acct No. 2 of
1995, requires financial statements to be accompanied with a declaration issue by the Head
of Finance/ Accounting responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the entity
concerned.

It is the duty of a Professional Accountant to assist the Board of Directors to discharge the
responsibility of preparing financial statements of an entity showing true and fair view of the
entity position and performance in accordance with applicable International Accounting
Standards and Statutory financial reporting requirements.

Full legal responsibility for the preparation of financial statements rests with the Board of
Directors as under Directors Responsibility statement on an earlier page.

| CPA Elisante Abraham Tuni being the Acting Director of Finance and Accounts of Tanzania
Broadcasting Corporation (TBC) hereby acknowledge my responsibility of ensuring that
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022, have been prepared in compliance with
applicable accounting standards and statutory requirements.

| thus confirm that the financial statements give a true and fair view position of TBC as on
that date and that they have been prepared based on properly maintained financial records.

Aol

Signed by: Elisante A. Tuni
Position: Ag. Director of Finance and Accounts
NBAA Membership No: ACPA 4085

25 Marclh 20328 .

Date:
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5.0

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022
Note

ASSETS

Current Asset

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Inventories

Prepayments

Receivables

Total Current Asset

Non Current Asset

Intangible Assets

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Property, Plant and Equipment
Work In Progress

Total Non Current Asset
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Payables and Accruals
Provision

Total Current Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities
Deferred Income (Capital)
Total Non Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net Assets

NET ASSETS/EQUITY

Capital Contributed by:
Taxpayers Fund

Accumulated Surpluses / Deficits
TOTAL NET ASSETS/EQUITY

O 00N O

10
11

12/33
13/34

14
15

16

30-Jun-22

6,702,883,449
78,540,706
20,655,300
4,599,426,645
11,401,506,100

35,113,816
627,326,000

88,472,532,986
2,406,200,185
91,541,172,987
102,942,679,087

8,453,831,977
80,000,000
8,533,831,977

3,316,336,908
3,316,336,908
11,850,168,885

91,092,510,202

55,500,446,960
35,592,063,242
91,092,510,202

30-Jun-21

9,842,299,501
84,076,127
586,279,194
4,126,303,936
14,638,958,758

72,468,816
627,326,000

83,418,579,046
1,770,349,218
85,888,723,079
100,527,681,837

9,753,849,522
80,000,000
9,833,849,522

7,754,447,628
7,754,447,628
17,588,297,150

82,939,384,687

55,500,446,960
27,438,937,727
82,939,384,687

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors during its 11th Extra-
Ordinary Meeting held on 17 February 2023 and signed on its behalf by: .

Stephen N. Kagaigai, Board Chairman

Dr. Ayub Rioba Chacha, Director General

Signature:

Signature:

_—

e

= e 23 e 2323
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022

REVENUE

Gain/ (Loss) on Forign
Currency Translation
Revenue from Exchange
Transactions

Revenue Grants
TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS

Expenses

Amortazation of Intangible
Assets

Depreciation of Property, Plant
and Equipment

Impairment of Receivables

Interest Expenses

Wages, Salaries and Employee
Benefits

Social Benefits
Use of Goods and Service
Maintenance Expenses

Other Expenses

Provision of Obsolute
Inventories

Total Expenses

Transfer

Grants, Subsidies and other
Transfer Payments

Total Transfer

TOTAL EXPENSES AND
TRANSFERS

Surplus / Deficit

Note

19

20
21

22

23

24
25

26

27
28
29
30

3

32

30 June 2022

3,225,440

8,777,360,683

27,669,552,995
36,450,139,118

37,355,000

3,807,394,058

36,313,776
30,084,165

16,341,757,512

3,430,000
5,490,033,892
568,652,894
772,665,219

27,087,686,516

1,209,327,087
1,209,327,087
28,297,013,603
8,153,125,515

30 June 2021

11,320,414,891

17,157,569,851
28,477,984,742

31,435,898

3,475,936,880

250,574,812
37,811,858

16,394,144,734

5,429,541,507
470,579,502
1,805,755,452

659,568

27,896,440,208

50,000,000
50,000,000
27,946,440,207
531,544,536

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors during its 11th Extra-
Ordinary Meeting held on 17 February 2023 and signed on its behalf by: .

S
Stephen N. Kagaigai, Board Chairman Signaturec—%s—\‘gﬁlkv_ Date: N’Q ; A 2—.
—s )
= v A 3
Dr. Ayub Rioba Chacha, Director General Signatureﬁ Date: 2> TMA v¢ 4 ,, 21 23
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TANZANIA BROADCASTING CORPORATION

CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Notes 30-Jun-22 30-Jun-21
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
RECEIPTS
Revenue from Exchange Transactions 43.1 8,148,448,681 11,186,500,252
Funds Received 43.2 20,473,338,195 21,911,041,867
Total Receipts 28,621,786,876 33,097,542,119
PAYMENTS
Wages, Salaries and Employee Benefits 43.3 16,418,638,596 15,995,951,362
Supplies and Consumables Used 43.4 6,475,197,912 6,170,655,605
Social Benefits 43.5 3,430,000 0
Other Expenses 43.6 771,770,448 71,026,265
Maintenance Expenses 43.7 568,652,894 387,231,351
Interest Expenses . 43.8 30,084,165 37,811,858
Grants, Subsidies and other Transfer Payments 43.9 1,209,327,087 50,000,000
Total Payments 25,477,101,102 22,712,676,441
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,144,685,774 10,384,865,678
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property,Plant and Equipment 43.10 6,284,101,826 4,596,328,129
Total Investing Activities 6,284,101,826 4,596,328,129
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 6,284,101,826 4,596,328,129
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Financing Activities
Grants refunded/ transferred 0 0
Total Financing Activities 0 0
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 0 0
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,139,416,052) 5,788,537,549
Cash to be Surrendered to Holding Account 0 0
Cash to be Surrendered to PMG 0 0
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of period 6 9,842,299,501 4,053,761,952
Cash and cash equivalent at end of period 6 6,702,883,449 9,842,299,501
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TANZANIA BROADCASTING CORPORATION

6.0 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. CORPORATION INFORMATION

Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation (TBC) is a Public Corporation established under the Public
Corporation Act of 1992 CAP 257 and Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation Establishment Order of
2007 as per Government Notice No. 186 of 2007. Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation took over
both Radio and Television public broadcasting activities from Tanzania Broadcasting Services upon
revocation of the Taasisi ya Utangazaji Tanzania -TUT (Tanzania Broadcasting Services)
Establishment Order of 2002. The address of its registered office is:

Broadcasting House
Nyerere Road

PO Box 9191

Dar es Salaam
Tanzania

2. GOING CONCERN BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Corporation reported an accumulated surplus position of TZS 35.59 billion (2021: TZS 27.43
billion). The surplus from operations during the year was TZS 8.15 billion (2021: surplus of TZ5
531.5 million), current liabilities worth TZS 8.5 billion (2021: TZS 9.8 billion) and current assets
worth TZS 11.4 billion (2021: TZS 14.78 billion) thus a current ratio of 1.3:1 (2021: Ratio 1.4:1).
The slight decrease resulted from the utilization of the previous year commited fund. During the
year current liabilities decreases since the Corporation committed to pay its current liabilities on
time. The Government has committed to continue to give financial support to the Corporation.

The directors have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis, which assumes
that the Corporation will continue in operations for at least one year from the date of the
financial statements and will be able to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of operations. This decision by the directors is based on the grounds explained below:

The Corporation continues with marketing and sales promotion countrywide including establishing
own sales outlet and appointment of agents countrywide. Moreover, the Corporation continues to
serve the Government and the public at large and directors believe that the Government will
continue to support the Corporation by way of subsidies so as to ensure that public service is

sustained.

These financial statements do not reflect adjustments that would be necessary if the Corporation
were unable to continue as a "going concern”. While Directors believe that the actions already
taken or planned, will mitigate the adverse conditions and events which raise doubt about the
validity of the "going concern” assumption used in preparing these financial statements, there can
be no assurance that these actions will be successful.

If the Corporation was unable to continue as a "going concern”, then adjustments would be
necessary to the carrying values of assets and liabilities.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless where
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The measurement basis applied is the historical cost basis, except
where otherwise stated in the accounting policies below. The financial statements are presented
in Tanzania Shillings (TZS).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the corporation’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 5.

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) - Accrual basis.

(b) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

No new and amended standards adopted by the Corporation. 2020/2021 TBC adopted IPSAS 29
Impairments of Trade Receivables that were effective for the first time for the year beginning on
or after 1 July 2020.

(c) Foreign currency translation
(i)Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Corporation operates (the “functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in Tanzania Shillings (TZS), which is the Corporation’s
functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are converted into Tanzania Shillings at
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rates prevailing at the transaction dates. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate as at the reporting date. Non-monetary items measured at
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are translated at the date of initial
recognition. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in surplus or deficit.

4. Adoption of new and revised standards

a) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended
30 June 2022,

IPSASB deferred the application date of standards from 1st January 2022 owing to Covid 19.
This was done to provide entities with time to effectively apply the standards. The deferral

was set for 1st January 2023.

b) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended
30 June 2022.

Standard Effective date and impact:
IPSAS 41: Appﬁcable: 1st January 2023:
Financial The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial reporting of

Instruments financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and useful information to
users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and
uncertainty of an Entity’s future cash flows.

IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful information than

IPSAS 29, by:
« Applying a single classification and measurement model for financial assets
that considers the characteristics of the asset’s cash flows and the objective
for which the asset is held;
« Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is
applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing; and
« Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the hedging
arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a strong link
between an Entity’s risk management strategies and the accounting treatment
for instruments held as part of the risk management strategy.

The application of the standard will improve the forward looking perspective in

reporting of the current assets and liabilities.

Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/TBC/2021/22
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TANZANIA BROADCASTING CORPORATION

Applicable: 1%t January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a reporting Entity

provides in its financial statements about social benefits. The information

provided should help users of the financial statements and general-purpose

financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity.

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity’s financial

performance, financial position and cash flows.

The standard will refine the financial statements with the comparability aspect in

classification of social benefits.

Applicable: 1st January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted when
IPSAS 41 was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on hedging and

credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for
financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitted when
IPSAS 41 was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying financial
instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertently
omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

The Standard will improve the reporting particularly in accounting for guarantee
contracts and credit risks.

Applicable 1 January 2023

e IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General Government

Sector.
e IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by
IPSAS 41 which is applicable from 15t January 2023.
The standard will improve the reporting interms of the financial instruments

particularly the timming of cashflows.

Controller and Auditor General AR/PA/TBC/2021/22
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IPSAS 43 Applicable 15t January 2025
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and
lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents those
transactions. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to
assess the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial performance
and cashflows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present information
on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

Subsequently the standard will not have effect in TBC Financial Statements as the
Corporation does not maintain leased assets.

IPSAS 44: Applicable 15t January 2025

Non- Current The Standard requires,

Assets Held Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at

for Sale and  the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the depreciation

Discontinued of such assets to cease and:

Operations Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented
separately in the statement of financial position and the results of discontinued
operations to be presented separately in the statement of financial performance.
The University will improve the disclosure in the face of financial statements as
the non current assets held for sale and discontinued operations will be separately

reported and disclosed.

c) Early adoption of standards

The entity early adopted the IPSAS for Covid 19 Pandemic whereby, the effects of Covid 19
pandemic were thourghly analysis and its impact disclosed starting financial year 2020/2021
onwards.

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(@) Revenue recognition

The Corporation recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Corporation's activities as described below.

The amount is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the
sale have been resolved. The Corporation bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.
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Revenue from non-exchange of transactions
Government subsidies and grants

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with the government are measured at fair value and
recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the
transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service
potential related to the asset will flow to the Corporation and can be measured reliably.
Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the corporation
will comply with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants whose primary condition is that the corporation should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognized as capital grants (deferred income) in
the statement of financial position and amortised - transfered to Financial Performance when

utilised.

Other government grants without condition are recognized as revenue over the periods
received and credited directly to the Statement of Financial Performance. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Corporation with no future related costs are
recognized in surplus or deficit in the period in which they become receivable.

Revenue from exchange of transactions

(i) Sale of goods and services

Revenues received or receivable for the sale of goods and services are shown net of value-added
tax, estimated returns, rebates and discounts. Sales of services are recognized in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from the sale of goods
and services in the ordinary course of the Corporation's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts.

(i)

(if)

Advertising revenues

Advertising revenues are recognized upon showing/airing of the advertisements. Online
advertising revenues are recognized over the period in which the advertisements are
displayed.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised for all interest-bearing instruments using the effective yield
method. The effective yield discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount. The method applies this yield
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to the principal outstanding to determine interest income each period. Interest income
includes coupons earned on fixed income investments and accrued discount and premium on
treasury bills and other discounted instruments.

(b) Current and deferred income tax

Current income tax

Being a public Broadcaster, a non profit organization, TBC is not subject to corporate tax.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable surplus will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

(c) Value Added Tax (VAT)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax except where
the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case the value added tax is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the assets or services as applicable.

The net amount of Value Added Tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

(d) Plant, Property and equipment

Plant, Property and equipment are stated at historical cost, being the purchase cost plus any cost
directly attributable to the preparation of the assets for their intended use, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Plant, Property and equipment, are
depreciated over each asset's estimated useful life. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is de-recognised.

All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to surplus or deficit during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as per Public Assets Management Guidelines (Revised
Edition, 2019) follows:
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Leasehold land over the lease term
Buildings 50 years

Motor vehicles (5 tones and above) 10 years

Motor vehicles (below 5 tonnes) 5 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computers 4 years

Furniture, Fittings and Equipment 5 years
Transmitters 7 years

Major leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of their respective lease periods
and estimated useful economic life. The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying
amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the corporation
and the cost can be reliably measured. Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining
useful economic life of the related asset.

An item of plant, property and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any
gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in surplus or loss when the

asset is derecognised.

Capital work in progress includes accumulated cost of plant, property and equipment which is
under construction or for which cost has been incurred, but which is not yet ready for use by the
Corporation. It also includes cost incurred for assets being constructed by third parties, assets
which have not been delivered to or installed in the facility and assets which cannot be used until
certain other assets are acquired and installed. Where there is a significant interval between the
time at which cost is incurred in connection with the acquisition of an asset and when the asset
will be ready for use, the cost is accumulated in capital work in progress. At the time the asset is
ready for use, the accumulated cost is to be transferred to the appropriate category and
depreciation is charged. Capital work in progress is not depreciated, since the asset is not yet
ready for use.

Plant, Property and equipment that are acquired through non-exchange contracts are measured
at the fair value thereof at the date of acquisition. The corresponding credit is recognized as
income in the statement of financial performance, unless there are conditions on the asset’s use.
In which case, revenue is deferred as a liability. The fair value of the item (at initial recognition)
is therefore adopted as the deemed cost of the item received.

(e) Intangible assets

The Corporation's intangible assets mainly relate to computer software. An intangible asset is
recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected
future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Corporation. Intangible assets
acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
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intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Computer software development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of
identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Corporation are recognised as
intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

o It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;
o Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;
e There is an ability to use or sell the software product;

e It can be demonstrated that the software product will generate probable future economic
benefits;

e Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the software product are available; and

o The expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the
software development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Other
development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in

a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised using the straight-line
method over the useful lives, estimated at four years.

(f) Leases

Corporation as a Lessee

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement at the inception date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Finance leases which transfer to the Corporation substantially all the risks and benefits incidental
to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are recognised in finance costs in surplus or deficit.
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A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Corporation will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental
to ownership of the leased item to the Corporation. Operating lease payments are recognized as
an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Corporation as a lessor

Leases in which the Corporation does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the
lease term.

Rent received from an operating lease is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

(g) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in surplus or deficit over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.

(h) Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in which they are
incurred.

(i) Financial assets

(i) Classification
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Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All financial assets of the Corporation are in the category of loans and receivables, based on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as
non-current assets. The Corporation’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and other
receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the statement of financial position.

i) Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date The date on
which the Corporation commits to purchase or sell the asset. Loans and receivables are
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

'iii) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the Corporation or the counterparty.

(iv) De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Corporation has subsequently transferred all risks and
rewards of ownership.

(j) Impairment of financial assets

The Corporation assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and
where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in surplus or deficit. As a practical expedient, the Corporation may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

(k) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Financial liabilities are derecognised when extinguished.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in surplus or deficit.

() Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on a
weighted average cost method and comprises expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories
and bringing them to their existing location and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the open market less applicable selling expenses. Stores and consumables are
stated at cost less any provision for obsolescence. Any obsolete items are provided for in full in
the year they are detected.

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying values of non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists
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and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-
generating units are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the
assets is the greater of net selling price and vatue in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an
asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit immediately.

(n) Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks, cash on
hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less. For the purpose of the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. During the year the Corporation had no
outstanding Bank overdraft (2021 TZS. 249m).

(o) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Corporation has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the Corporation will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the statement of financial position date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. When some or all of the economic
benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third-party, the
receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(p) Employees’ benefits

The Corporation has a statutory requirement to contribute to publicly administered pension
schemes (Public Services Pension Fund - PSSPF, and Zanzibar Social Security Fund - Z55F). The
Corporation has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognized as an employee benefits expense when they are due.
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The estimated monetary liability for employees’ accrued entitlements at the reporting date is
recognized as accrued expenses.

(q) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

(r) Associate

An associate is an entity over which the Corporation has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the investor’s share of the surplus or deficit of the investee after the date of
acquisition. Distributions received from the associate reduce the carrying amount of the

investment.

The Corporation’s share of post-acquisition surplus or deficit is recognised in the surplus or
deficit, with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Corporation’s share of losses in an associate equal or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Corporation does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. The Corporation determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Corporation
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/loss of an
associate’ in the surplus or deficit.

(s) Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(t) Budget information

TBC prepares its budget based on the Government’s Medium Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF)
which adheres to the principles of Open Governance.
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The budget is prepared on a cash basis. To bridge the gap between the budget prepared in cash
basis and the financial statements prepared in accrual basis, the Corporation prepares a
statement of reconciliation of actual amounts on a budget basis, with actual amounts presented
in the financial statements.

TBC is operated based on the fiscal year and so its approved budget covers a period from 15t July
to 30" June of each fiscal year.

A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved
budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.
Explanatory comments are provided in the notes to the annual financial statements;the reasons
for the growth or decline of the fund received / collected in line with the budget are stated,
followed by details of overspending or underspending on line items.

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Corporation’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk

and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Corporation’s risk management framework. As part of governance structure, the Board of
Directors has established a comprehensive risk management framework for measuring,
monitoring, controlling and mitigating the Corporation’s risks. This includes, the provision of
written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and credit
risk. The Corporation’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by
means of reliable and up-to-date information systems. The Corporation regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best

practice.

The notes below provide detailed information on each of the above risks and the Corporation’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk.

a) Market risk

i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. As and when the need arises, the
Corporation enters into transactions denominated in foreign currencies (primarily United States
Dollars (USS$). In addition, the Corporation has assets and liabilities denominated in United States
Dollars (US$). As a result, the Corporation is subjected to transaction and translation exposure
from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. The Corporation has no significant foreign
currency transactions and therefore the effects of foreign exchange risk are minimal.
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ii) Interest rate risk

The Corporations interest expense and operating cash flows are affected by changes in market
interest rates. The Corporation mitigates the risks by investing in less risky investments mainly
fixed bank deposits. With all other variables held constant, the interest rate is 19% on the bank
overdraft. would have resulted in an increase in the profit after tax of approximately TZS
30,084,164.82 (2021: TZS 37,811,858).

b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Corporation is exposed to credit related losses in
the event of a non-performance by counterparties to financial instruments. Potential concentration
of credit risk consists principally of short-term cash and cash equivalents, and trade receivables.
The Corporation deposits short term cash surpluses only with major banks of high credit standing.

Trade account receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Ongoing credit evaluation of the
financial position of customers is performed. The granting of credit facilities is made on application
and is approved by the Director of Marketing.

Trade receivables are presented net of allowance for doubtful debts. Accordingly, the Corporation
has no significant concentration of credit risk which has not been insured or adequately provided
for. With respect to the trade and other receivables that are neither impaired nor past due, there
are no indications as of the reporting date that the debtors will not meet their payment

obligations.

The Corporation’s maximum exposure to Credit Risk as at 30 June 2022 is as shown below:

2021/22 2020/21
TZS TZS

Financial Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,702,883,449 9,842,299,501
Receivables 9,702,025,131 9,192,588,646
Total Financial Assets 16,404,908,580 19,034,888,147

The age analysis of the Corporation’s receivables with consideration of allowances for impairment
is provided below and analysis with impairment allowance is provided under Note 17 and note 18 of
these financial statements:

. 4to 6| 7 monthsto
Details Up to 3 Months Months 1 Year Over 1 Year Total
Receivable from Exchange Transactions
Government
LRI and 1,047,344,598 | 641,376,315 | 382,602,085 | 3,059,949,137 | 5,131,272,135
Ministries
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Private Companies 697,491,422 171,450,502 | 209,058,433 2,526,146,581 3,604,146,938
Sub Total 1,744,836,020 | 812,826,817 | 591,660,518 | 5,586,095,718 | 8,735,419,073
Receivable from non

exchange 189,339,005 89,108,653 278,447,658
transactions

Sub Total 189,339,005 ) i 89,108,653 278,447,658
Other Receivables 688,158,400 688,158,400
Sub Total B } 3 688,158,400 688,158,400
Grand Total 1,934,175,025 | 812,826,817 | 591,660,518 | 6,363,362,771 | 9,702,025,131

LESS: Allowances for impairment of Receivables

Provision for
doubtful Debts

-5,054,469,678

-5,054,469,678

Receivables

1,934,175,025

812,826,817

591,660,518

1,260,764,285

e Sas 48,128,808 |  -48,128,808
oans
Net Total

4,599,426,645

¢) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivery of cash or another financial asset.
The Corporation manages its liquidity risk to ensure it is able to meet estimated expenditure
requirements. This is achieved through prudent liquidity risk management which includes
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents.

The Corporation’s liquidity is managed by forecasting the cash and currency requirements. In
managing its liquidity risk, the Corporation has access to funding at competitive rates through banks
and dependency on government grants and subsides.

(d) Capital risk management

The Corporation’s objective when managing its capital is to safeguard the Corporation’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for owners and reduce the cost of capital.
The Corporation has no share capital and it is financed by the Government.

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under

the circumstances.

The Corporation makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
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and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below:

(i) Useful lives of assets

The useful lives of items of plant, property and equipment are estimated annually and are in line
with the rate at which they are depreciated.

(ii) Impairment of financial instruments

The Corporation follows the guidance of IPSAS 29 to determine when a financial asset is impaired.
This determination requires significant judgement.

(iii) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Corporation assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial
assets at each reporting date. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

30 June, 2022 30 June. 2021

6 - Cash and Cash Equivalents
BOT Own source Collection Account 6,511,737,311 8,475,579,945
Cash in hand 938,300 2,037,400
CRDB CASH‘ ACCOUNT 2,454,195 971,918,539
Deposit General Cash Account
Own source Collection Account - CRDB 102,409,100 201,573,717
Own source Collection Account - NMB 13,066,000 191,189,900
Own source Recurrent Expenditure GF 72,278,543

6,702,883,449 9,842,299,501

6A - Significant Cash and cash equivalent balance not available for use.
During the year, Cash and cash equivalent comprises of TZS 6.45 Billion, that are not available for use by

the Corporation (2020/2021 - TZS 9.17 Billion), Refer note 32.

7 - Inventories

Fuel 22,279,700
Office consumable (Stationaries, etc.) 199,950,535 227,765,656
Provision for obsolete stock (143,689,528) (143,689,528)
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8 - Prepayments
Prepayment

Prepayment-Asset

9 - Receivables
Impairment Staff loans

Receivable from non exchange transactions

Other receivables
Provision for doubtful Debts

Receivable from exchange transactions

Accrual Income

9A Movement in provision for impairment of receivables

Balance at beginning of year

Additions

Recoveries from Impaired receivables

Increase in provision
At end of year

10- Intangible Assets

907,397,623

Accumulated. Amortization Computer Software

Computer Software

11 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Investment in Star Media (T) ltd

871,083,847

78,540,707

20,655,300

20,655,300

(48,128,808)
278,447,658
688,158,400
(5,054,469,678)
7,953,140,838
782,278,236

4,599,426,645

5,018,155,902

36,313,776
5,054,469,678

(284,180,264)
319,294,080
35,113,816

627,326,000
627,326,000

84,076,128

97,303,027
488,976,167
586,279,194

(48,128,808)
397,923,176
688,158,400
(5,018,155,902)
7,153,840,078
952,666,992

4,126,303,936

4,575,598,578

442,557,325
5,018,155,902

(246,825,264)
319,294,080
72,468,816

627,326,000
627,326,000

Set out below are the details of the Joint Venture of the Corporation as at 30 June 2022:

Place of % of

business/country ownership Principal Measurement
Year Name of the entity of incorporation interest activities  method

Provision

Dar es salaam, of pay TV

Star Media (Tanzania) Limited Tanzania 35% services Equity
54
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The principle activity of the Joint Venture is to promote pay TV services. TBC owns 35% of the
share capital of Star Media Tanzania Limited (“the Joint Venture”) while the Star Communication
Network Technology Limited (Chinese based company) owns 65%. The last audited financial
statements available for the Joint Venture relates to the year ended 31 December 2013 in which
the Joint Venture reported accumulated losses of USD 3,389,735 (approximately TZS
5,335,473,737 based on the BOT’s mean exchange rate as at 31 December 2013). However, there
are no audited reports for seven consecutive years from the year ended 31 December 2014 to 31

December 2020.

The draft financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 revealed a loss of USD
8,631,316. The reports were prompted by the Joint Venture’s Board Chairman to call for further
investigation to understand the cause of the abnormal loss.

Furthermore, up to 30 June 2016, the Joint Venture reported in its management accounts
accumulated losses of approximately TZS 61.14 billion. The continued deterioration in the
profitability of the Joint Venture has been alarming to the Board of Directors of the Joint
Venture. The Board requested a special audit team by the Office of the Controller and
Auditor General to investigate the cause of the loss and establish whether the
accumulated losses are genuine. The CAG report submitted to Attorney General (AG). As result,
no share of the Joint Venture’s accumulated losses has been allotted to TBC pending the results
from the AG report.

- Property, Plant and Equipment
Acc.Deprec. Hardware: servers and Equipment

(Incl. desktops, Laptops, UPS etc) (1,144,710,515) (998,900,064)
Accumulated Depreciation Motor Vehicles (Administrative) (3,427,882,128) (2,832,356,956)
Accumulated Depreciation Office buildings and structures (5,192,758,397) (4,876,745,933)
Accumulated Depreciation Office Furniture and Fittings (1,308,489,728) (1,129,285,536)
Accumulated Depreciation Transmission and studio equipment(24,605,106,928) (22,034,265,149)
Hardware: servers and equipment (incl. desktops, laptops etc.) 1,808,879,304 1,745,471,992
Lease hold land 56,089,093,235 56,054,151,680
Motor vehicles, 5,977,091,352 5,488,115,185
Office buildings and structures 14,307,754,899 14,307,754,899
Office buildings and structures-Addition Nonmonetary 1,724,552,486
Office Furniture and Fittings 2,026,716,198 1,897,895,483
Office Furniture and Fittings-AdditionNonMonetary 39,817,268
Transmission and studio equipment 42,177,575,942 35,796,743,445
88,472,532,986 83,418,579,045
13 - Work In Progress
Machinery and equipment - WIP 4,161,159,756 1,770,349,218
55
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Machinery and equipment - WIP Transfer

14 - Payables and Accruals

Staff Claim

Supplies of goods and services

Accrued expenses

Tax Payable
Withholding tax

15 - Provisions
Audit fees

TANZANIA BROADCASTING CORPORATION

(1,754,959,571)

809,369,457
3,151,110,181
323,861,166
4,155,250,140
14,241,033

8,453,831,977

80,000,000

80,000,000

16 - Deferred Income (Capital)

Development Deferred Income

17. TAXPAYERS FUND

3,316,336,908

3,316,336,908

886,250,541
3,492,828,807
718,295,734
4,656,474,440

9,753,849,522

80,000,000
80.000.000

7,754,447,628

7,754,447,628

Taxpayers Fund relates to land provided by the Government of Tanzania to the Corporation as
capital when the Corporation was formed. The value of the land is based on the fair value as at

June 2018.

In the opinion of management, this is a capital contribution by the Government of Tanzania in its
capacity as beneficial owner of the Corporation.

18.CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Corporation’s capital structure for the year ended 30 June 2022 consists of Taxpayers Fund of
TZS 55.50 billion (30 June 2021: TZS 55.50 billion) and Accumulated Surplus of TZ5 35.59 billion
(30 June 2021: TZS 27.44 billion). Reference -Statement of Change in equity.

Therefore, the Corporation’s capital structure for the financial years ended 30 June 2022 and 30
June 2021 are financed by assets and liabilities as summarized below:

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Payables and Accruals

Provision

Total Current Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Deferred Income (Capital)

14
15

16

June 2022
8,453,831,977
80,000,000
8,533,831,977

3,316,336,908

Controller and Auditor General

June 2021
9,753,849,523
80,000,000
9,833,849,523

7,754,447,628
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Total Non Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net Assets

NET ASSETS/EQUITY

Capital Contributed by:

Taxpayers/Share Capital 17
Accumulated Surpluses / Deficits

TOTAL NET ASSETS/EQUITY

19 - Gain/ (Loss) on Foreign Currency Translation
Foreign exchange differences (Gain)

20 - Revenue from Exchange Transactions
Other Receipts

Radio Commercial Advertisement
Radio Commercial Programs

Rent fee

TV Commercial Advertisement

TV Commercial Programs

21 - Revenue Grants
Government Grant Development Local

Government Grant Other Charges
Government Grant Personal Emolument
Non-Monetary Revenue - Current

Subvention current

22- Amortization of Intangible Assets
Amortization of intangible asset

23 - Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation Hardware servers and equipment
(incl. desktops, Laptops, UPS, etc)

Depreciation Motor Vehicles (Administrative)
Depreciation Office buildings and structures

3,316,336,908
11,850,168,885

91,092,510,202

55,500,446,960
35,592,063,242
91,092,510,202

3,225,440
3,225,440

936,760,398
736,538,746
1,117,321,892
708,469,267
2,108,425,255
3,169,845,125

8,777,360,683

9,213,009,770
3,911,550,000
10,600,911,613
2,758,104,080
1,185,977,532

27,669,552,995

37,355,000
37,355,000

145,810,451

7,754,447,628
17,588,297,151

82,939,384,687

55,500,446,960
27,438,937,727
82,939,384,687

3,172,760,401
502,835,646
1,409,701,669
696,309,772
2,498,786,660
3,040,020,743

11,320,414,892

3,381,438,915
4,200,000,000
9,366,130,936

210,000,000
17,157,569,851

31,435,898
31,435,898

203,059,459

Controller and Auditor General

595,525,172 609,912,292
316,012,464 311,490,809
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Depreciation Office Furniture and Fittings
Depreciation Transmission and studio equipment

24 - Impairment of Receivables
Impairment of Receivable

25 - Interest Expenses
Overdrafts

26 - Wages, Salaries and Employee Benefits

Acting Allowance
Civil Servants
Civil Servants Contracts

179,204,192
2,570,841,779

3,807,394,058

36,313,776

30,084,165
30,084,165

47,802,000
8,949,505,350
1,207,909,688

174,886,788
2,176,587,532
3,475,936,880

250,574,812

37,811,858
37,811,858

30,562,000
7,942,701,359
1,517,902,923

Dizel Allowances 224,179,000 262,952,000
Extra-Duty 713,174,237 1,166,570,257
Food and Refreshment 589,798,000 734,962,132
Furniture 44,865,000
Gratuities - 3,163,462
Hardship Allowance 26,400,000 19,200,000
Honoraria 10,600,000 27,500,000
Household Appliances 47,694,966 -
Housing Allowance 1,233,680,267 1,469,212,116
Leave Travel 67,617,888 75,863,206
Medical and Dental Refunds 30,200,000 3,095,647
Moving Expenses 158,363,120 201,351,192
Outfit Allowance 900,000
Responsibility Allowance 188,939,707 334,642,000
Risk Allowance 1,660,000
Sitting Allowance 210,653,688 204,010,429
Special Allowance 1,740,000 82,840,000
Statutory Contributions 1,956,819,601 1,692,456,011
Top up Allowance 66,455,000 53,700,000
Transport Allowance 565,360,000 568,900,000
16,341,757,512 16,394,144,733
27 - Social Benefits
Assistant to Person with Disability 3,430,000
3,430,000 -
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28 - Use of Goods and Service
Advertising and Publication

Air Travel Tickets

Books, Reference and Periodicals

Communication Network Services

Courier Services

Diesel

Educational Radio and TV broadcasting programming
Electricity

Entertainment

Exhibition, Festivals and Celebrations

Fumigation

Ground travel (bus, railway taxi, etc)

Internet and Email connections

Newspapers and Magazines

Non Cash Expenditure

Office Consumables (papers, pencils, pens and stationaries)
Outsourcing Costs (includes cleaning and security services)
Per Diem - Domestic

Per Diem - Foreign

Posts and Telegraphs

Rent - Office Accommodation

Satellite access services

Software License Fees

Sporting Supplies

Subscription Fees

Tapes, Films, and Materials (split)

Training Allowances

Uniforms

Water Charges

29 - Maintenance Expenses

79,832,723
24,701,998

36,002,265

146,786,732
1,551,446,322
852,216,001
34,853,196

3,303,582
168,015,129
333,565,739

3,909,000
126,582,081
332,189,395
459,538,059
113,878,970

43,154,896
181,703,119
598,508,353

96,398,428

740,000
182,409,415

83,843,200
10,113,043

26,342,246

5,490,033,892

Computers, printers, scanners, and other computer related equipment

Electrical and Other Cabling Materials
Mechanical, electrical, and electronic spare parts
Outsource maintenance contract services

Panel and body shop repair materials and services

Repair and Maintenance of Furniture

25,508,723
85,470,594
269,219,100
150,762,773
8,703,000

211,195,104

59,215,000
30,841,929
10,119,130
281,351,196
1,270,083,848
619,797,757
18,905,577

468,000
184,754,254
296,690,235

6,194,500
174,798,454
112,678,309
174,626,302
490,560,500

1,843,461

20,421,553
112,970,871
587,293,603
52,346,710

860,000
197,048,749

885,847
461,828,634

13,783,136

37,978,848
5,429,541,507

24,787,299
47,545,023
60,280,687
160,653,500
90,273,214
16,193,469
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Small Tools and Implements
TV sets and Radios

30 - Other Expenses
Audit fees

Audit supervision expenses

Bank Charges and Commissions

Burial Expenses

Consultancy fees

Corporate Social Responsibilities
Education supervision expenses

Foreign exchange differences (Losses)
Freight Forwarding and Clearing Charges
Legal fees

Other Payments

Sales Commission, Discount and Revenue Share

Vehicles Insurance

31 - Provision of Obsolete Inventories
Provision for write-off of obsolete inventories

32 - Grants, Subsidies and other Transfer Payments
Contribution to CF (15%)

Disbursement Transfer

28,138,704
850,000

568,652,894

80,000,000
10,020,000
41,945,324
52,640,520
32,135,131
9,608,000
107,722,800
894,770
15,643,999
97,518,831
324,460,011
75,833

772,665,218

50,000,000
1,159,327,087
1,209,327,087

48,751,331
22,094,978

470,579,502

80,000,000
47,392,257
60,351,840
80,764,958
17,082,542
85,628,930
15,492,569
95,332,835

910,580,409
411,332,699
1,796,413

1,805,755,452

659,568

50,000,000

50,000,000

**Disbursement Transfer consist of the Revenue expenditure to facilitate Tanzania Safari Channel. During
the year, a Separate Bank Account to operate transactions for Tanzania Safari Channel was opened. The

amount transferred in this account incurred as detailed below:

Disbursement Transfer

Salaries and Allowances 462,479,036
Per Diem 174,615,800
Local Programme Production 473,118,536
Motor vehicle repair and maintanance 43,613,715
Advertising and Publication 5,500,000

1,159,327,087
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of key management personnel
Key management's remuneration
Social security contributions

Directors' remuneration
Directors' allowances
Directors' fees

Employer's social Security Contributions
Permanent Employees’
Contract Employees

Transaction with Star Media (Tanzania) Limited
Lease rental
Advertisements

2,950,374,000 1,481,830,000
245,320,400 223,862,600
3,195,694,400 1,705,692,600
1,656,172,262 1,469,660,830
311,910,383 222,795,181
1,968,082,645 1,692,456,011
266,577,827 246,988,024
266,577,827 246,988,024

Transaction with Star Media (Tanzania) Limited relates to operating lease rentals on TBC
properties occupied by Star Media (Tanzania) Limited, Advertisement on TV and Radio and from
Memorandum of understanding on which Star Media Tanzania LTD contribute TZS. 3 billion to

TBC.
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

| | As at the reporting date, the corporation had the following capital commitments:

30-Jun-22

30-Jun-21

TZS

TZ5

Supply and Constructions of seven
transmitters/Generators, Houses and Satellite
Dishes; Procurement of Automatic Voltage;

Procurement of Hand carry Transmitters; Supply,
installation, testing and commissioning and training
of Radio equipment and accessories; Myriad system
upgrade.

4,557,849,367

Supply and Construction of three (3) towers and
generators, Houses and Satellite Dishes

936,901,176

Procurement of Flyaway Production equipment for
Safari Channel

678,000,000

Contraction of TBC Headquarters as Vikonje Dodoma

2,367,070,000

3,000,000,000

Programme production for Tanzania Safari channel

661,034,721

Land Compasation - Vikonje site

108,992,639

Supply, Installation, Testing , Commissioning and
Training of radio equipment and accessories for
upgrading full digital system for TBC Taifa and TBC
FM  (Onair Studio,Production studio and Music
production gallery) at TBC Pugu road and
Mikocheni.

1,331,810,851

Controller and Auditor General
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As at the reporting date, the corporation had the following capital commitments:

30-Jun-22 30-Jun-21
TZS TZS
Construction of Transmitter Houses for Five (5)
Radio Transmitters Stations (Kilwa, Serengeti, 350,839,995.00
Simiyu, Njombe and Songwe)
Procurement of equipment for Upgrade of TBC1 and
TBC2 outlook 994,784,928.00
Procurement of Automatic voltage regulator and
airconditioner and  accessories for  Seven
Transmitters 49,722,068
Supply, installation and Construction of Towers (5
Stations) 790,541,826
Procurement of SEVEN, 10KVA Single phase Standby
generators -7pcs 211,000,000
Procurement of Seven (7), FM radio transmitters
{Complete with all associated equipment) 425,812,380.00
Monitoring & Evaluation 17,800,000.00
Total 6,453,434,268 9,172,750,543
37 LEGAL CLAIMS CONTINGENCIES
As at the reporting date, the
corporation had the following pending
cases.
1. Kaseka Kisanji and others Vs TBC 110,000,000 110,000,000
2. Channel 2 Group Vs TBC 2,767,200,000,000

3. Kondo Abdaltah Vs TBC

4, Jeff Shelembi Vs TBC
5. HSK Technologies Ltd Vs TBC

6. TBC Vs Filbert Nestory na wenzake

The complainant
wants to be re-

instated
63,000,000
31,860,000
eviction order to
remove the
trespassers TBC is seeking
141,860,000 2,767,373,000,000

The Corporation has been advised by its legal counsel that it is only possible, but not probable,
that the actions will succeed. Accordingly, no provision for any liability has been made in these

financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There is no known event that has impacted on the results for the year and the statement of

affairs of the Corporation after the reporting date.

Controller and Auditor General
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38 COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

Preparation and approval of budeet

The budget is approved and prepared on a cash basis by nature of activities and the
financial statements were prepared on International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSASs) accrual basis. The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 1 July 2021 to 30
June 2022 which is the same period for actuals amounts used in the Statement of
Comparison of budget and actual amounts. The budget was approved by Board of Directors
and thereafter it was submitted to the Ministry of Information, Communication and
Information Technology for consolidation and final approval by the Parliament of the United
Republic of Tanzania.

Significant differences between actual amounts and approved budget

Funds Received:

This include fund received from the Government to cover the cost of Personal emplument

(PE), Development projects and other charged (OC) and fund received from Tanzania Safari

Channel Stakeholders. The signific shortage resulted from:

(i) Other charges (OC) was budgeted at TZS 4.2 billion for the year ended 30 June 2022.
During the year TZS 3.9 billion were disbursed by the Ministry of Finance and Planning
less by; 7.5%

(i1) Development fund was budgeted at TZS 5 billion for the year ended 30 June 2022.
However, the fund disbursed during the year was TZS. 3.698 billion; less by 26%

(iii) During the year TBC received fund from Tanzania Safari channels stakeholder

(TCRA) TZS. 1.185million to facilitate the operation of the Channel.
Own Source collection was budgeted at TZS 14 billion for the year ended 30 June 2022.
(Consist of Revenue from exchange transaction TZS. 12 billion and other revenue from
the written Business proposal TZS. 1.5 billion). The Corporation managed to receive a
total of TZS 9.2 billion, a shortfall of 34% of the budgeted amount; TZS. 8.1 billion
collection from exchange transaction at a shortfall of 35% and received TZS. 1.07 billion
from business written proposl - fund received from UCSAF, a shortfall of 28%) During the
year also the Corporation aired free live broadcasting for the Public interest worth more
than 5 billion which is 36% of the total ownsource budget.

As at the date of preparation of these financial statements the impact of the
Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic continue to affect the Corporation’s revenue
collection. Private companies which were affected financialy by the (COVID-19) still get
difficulties to settle their outstanding debts. TBC continue to make close followup, put
more emphasis on requiring payment in advance, strictly review credit limits and
adhering to credit policy to endure the outstanding receivables are collected on time.

Payment and Expenditure
The total Budgeted expenditure during the year 2021/2022 was TZS.41.1 billion. Actual

total payment during the year was TZS. 31.76 billion. Resulted to a shortfall of 23%. The
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following are the reason for the budget variation:

(i) Recurent expenditure; the underexpenditure is a result of instituted cost cutting
measures which led into reduction in expenses and delayed receipt of funds or
collections to finance the activities planed during the year.

(ii) Personet emolument; the overexpenditure resulted from payment of employers
contribution paid direct by the Treasury. TBC has to recognize the incurred expenses.
(iii)Property plant and equipment; the shortfall resulted from delayed receipt of funds and
the unpaid continuous projects. The commitment fund to be settled in the next

Financial year.

ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY FOR LIABILITIES
None of the Corporation’s assets has been pledged as security for liabilities.

CONTROLLING ENTITY AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING ENTITY

The Ministry of Information communication and information technology is the Controlling
Entity and the Government of the United Republic of Tanzania is the Ultimate Controlling
Entity of the Tanzania Broadcasting Corporation.

STATEMENT OF RECONCILIATION OF ACTUAL AMOUNT ON A COMPARABLE BASIS AND ACTUAL

AMOUNT IN FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Operating

Financing

Investing

Total

Actual Amount on
Comparable Basis as
Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative
Statement

-3,139,416,053

-3,139,416,053

Basis Differences

-5,269,720

-5,269,720

Timing Differences

Entity Differences

Presentation
differences

6,284,101,826

-6,284,101,826

Actual Amount in the
Statement of Cash
Flows

-3,139,416,053

-6,284,101,826

-3,144,685,773

The budget is approved on a cash basis by nature of activities. The approved budget covers the
fiscal period from July 1 2021 to June 30 2022.

The budget and the accounting bases differ. The financial statements for the Tanzania
Broadcasting Corporation are prepared on the accrual basis using a classification based on the
nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance for the fiscal period from July 1,
2021 to June 30, 2022. The financial statements differ from the budget which is approved on the

cash basis.
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The amounts in the financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and
reclassified by functional classification to be on the same basis as the final approved budget. The
amount of these adjustments are identified in the above table.

A reconciliation between the actual amounts on a comparable basis as presented in the
Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts and the actual amounts in the Statement
of Cash Flows for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 is presented above. The financial statements and
budget documents are prepared for the same period. There is no entity difference: the budget
and the financial statements is prepared for the Corporation. There is a basis difference: the
budget is prepared on a cash basis and the financial statements on the accrual basis.

42.RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES TO SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30th JUNE, 2022

The Corportion reports its cash flows from operating activities using the direct method and
therefore prepares a reconciliation of surplus/(deficit) from ordinary activities with the net cash
flows from operating activities. A reconciliation is provided below:-

2021/2022 2020/2021
TZS TZS

Surplus/ Deficit for the Period 8,153,125,515 531,544,536
Add/ (Less) Non Cash ltem
Amortazation of Intangible Assets 37,355,000 31,435,898
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 3,807,394,058 3,475,936,880
Gain/ (Loss) on Forign Currency Translation (3,225,440)
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment -
Impairment of Receivables 36,313,776 250,574,812
Non Monetary Revenue (2,758,104,080)
Other Expenses 894,770 15,492,569
Use of Goods and Service 174,798,454

Add/ (Less) Change in Working Capital
Deferred Income (Capital)

Deferred income (Revenue)
Inventories

Payables and Accruals

Prepayments

Receivables

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Controller and Auditor General

(4,438,110,720)

-5,535,421
(1,300,017,545)
76,647,727
(473,122,708)
3,144,685,774.00

7,754,447,628

(227,765,656)
9,833,849,523
(97,303,027)
(11,358,145,936)
10,384,865,681
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42: COMPARATIVE FIGURES

TBC has first adopted in this financial year 2021/2022 the use of Government accounting package
system - MUSE. Previous financial year’s figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever
considered necessary in order to facilitate comparability with the current year’s figures.

43. NOTES - CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30th JUNE, 2022

43.1 - Revenue from Exchange Transactions
Other Receipts

Radio Commercial Advertisement
Radio Commercial Programmes
Rent fee

TV Commercial Advertisement

TV Commercial Programmes

Revenue

Add/Less (Change in Working Capital)
Receivable from exchange transactions

Receipt

43.2 - Fund Received
Government Grant Development Local

Government Grant Other Charges
Government Grant Personal Emolument

Subvention current

Revenue

Add/Less (Change in Working Capital)
Development Deferred Income

Receipt

Total Receipts

43.3 - Wages, Salaries and Employee Benefits
Acting Allowance
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2022
TZS

936,760,398
736,538,746
1,117,321,892
708,469,267
2,108,425,255
3,169,845,125

8,777,360,683

(628,912,002)
(628,912,002)

8,148,448,681

9,213,009,770
3,911,550,000
10,600,911,613
1,185,977,532

24,911,448,915

(4,438,110,720)
(4,438,110,720)
20,473,338,195

28,621,786,876

47,802,000

2021
TZS

3,172,760,401
502,835,646
1,409,701,669
696,309,772
2,498,786,660
3,040,020,743

11,320,414,892

(8,106,507,071)
(8,106,507,071)
3,213,907,821

3,381,438,915
4,200,000,000
9,366,130,936

210,000,000

17,157,569,851

7,754,447,628
7,754,447,628
24,912,017,479

33,097,542,119

30,562,000
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Civil Servants

Civil Servants Contracts
Dizel Allowances
Extra-Duty

Food and Refreshment
Furniture

Gratuities

Hardship Allowance

Honoraria

Household Appliances
Housing Allowance
Leave Travel

Medical and Dental Refunds
Moving Expenses

Outfit Allowance
Responsibility Allowance
Risk Allowance

Sitting Allowance
Special Allowance
Statutory Contributions
Telephone Allowance

Transport Allowance

8,949,505,350
1,207,909,688
224,179,000
713,174,237
589,798,000
44,865,000

26,400,000

10,600,000
47,694,966
1,233,680,267
67,617,888
30,200,000
158,363,120

188,939,707

210,653,688
1,740,000
1,956,819,601
66,455,000
565,360,000

7,942,701,359
1,517,902,923
262,952,000
1,166,570,257
734,962,132
3,163,462
19,200,000

27,500,000

1,469,212,116
75,863,206
3,095,647
201,351,192
900,000
334,642,000
1,660,000
204,010,429
82,840,000
1,692,456,011
53,700,000
568,900,000

Expenses 16,341,757,512 16,394,144,733
Add/Less (Change in Working Capital)
Staff Claim 76,881,084 (398,193,371)
76,881,084 (398,193,371)
Payment 16,418,638,596 15,995,951,362
43.4 - Use of Goods and Service
Advertising and Publication 79,832,723 211,195,104
Air Travel Tickets 24,701,998
Books, Reference and Periodicals 59,215,000
Communication Network Services 36,002,265 30,841,929
Courier Services 10,119,130
Diesel 146,786,732 281,351,196
Educational Radio and TV broadcasting programming 1,551,446,322 1,270,083,848
Electricity 852,216,001 619,797,757
Entertainment 34,853,196 18,905,577
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Fumigation 3,303,582 468,000
Ground travel (bus, railway taxi, etc) 168,015,129 -
Internet and Email connections 333,565,739 296,690,235
Newspapers and Magazines 3,909,000 6,194,500
Non Cash Expenditure 174,798,454
Office Consumables (papers, pencils, pens and stationaries) 126,582,081 112,678,309
Outsourcing Costs (includes cleaning and security services) 332,189,395 174,626,302
Per Diem - Domestic 459,538,059 675,314,754
Per Diem - Foreign 113,878,970 1,843,461
Posts and Telegraphs 43,154,896 20,421,553
Rent - Office Accommodation 181,703,119 112,970,871
Satellite access services 598,508,353 587,293,603
Software License Fees 96,398,428 52,346,710
Sporting Supplies 740,000 860,000
Subscription Fees 182,409,415 197,048,749
Tapes, Films, and Materials (split) 885,847
Training Allowances 83,843,200 461,828,634
Uniforms 10,113,043 13,783,136
Water Charges 26,342,246 37,978,848
Expenses 5,490,033,894 5,429,541,505
Add/Less (Change in Working Capital)
Fuel 22,279,700
Impairment Staff loans (9,624,174)
Imprest Receivable (119,475,519) 72,151,670
Non Cash Expenditure (174,798,454)
Office consumable (Stationaries, etc.) (27,815,121) 227,765,656
Prepayment (76,647,727) 97,303,027
Provision for doubtful Debts (36,313,776) (250,574,812)
Supplies of goods and services 736,153,194 849,917,452
Tax Payable 501,224,300 (71,026,265)
Withholding tax (14,241,033)
985,164,019 741,114,100
Payment 6,475,197,912 6,170,655,605
43.5 - Social Benefits
Assistant to Person with Disability 3,430,000
Expenses 3,430,000
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Expenses

43.6 - Other Expenses
audit fees

audit supervision expenses

Bank Charges and Commissions

Burial Expenses

consultancy fees

Corporate Social Responsibilities

education supervision expenses

Freight Forwarding and Clearing Charges

legal fees

Other Payments

Sales Commission, Discount and Revenue Share

Vehicles Insurance

Expenses

Add/Less (Change in Working Capital)

Supplies of goods and services

Expenses

43.7 - Maintenance Expenses
Computers, printers, scanners, and other computer related equipment

Electrical and Other Cabling Materials
Mechanical, electrical, and electronic spare parts
Outsource maintenance contract services

Panel and body shop repair materials and services
Repair and Maintenance of Furniture

Small Tools and Implements

TV sets and Radios

Expenses

Add/Less (Change in Working Capital)

Supplies of goods and services

3,430,000

80,000,000
10,020,000
41,945,324
52,640,520
32,135,131
9,608,000
107,722,800
15,643,999
97,518,831

324,460,011
75,833

771,770,448

771,770,448

25,508,723
85,470,594
269,219,100
150,762,773
8,703,000
28,138,704
850,000

568,652,894
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80,000,000

47,392,257
60,351,840
80,764,958
17,082,542
85,628,930
95,332,835

910,580,409
411,332,699
1,796,413

1,790,262,883

(1,719,236,618)
(1,719,236,618)

71,026,265

24,787,299
47,545,023
60,280,687
160,653,500
90,273,214
16,193,469
48,751,331
22,094,978

470,579,502

(83,348,151)
(83,348,151)
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Expenses
43.8 - Interest Expenses
Overdrafts
Expenses
Expenses

43.9 - Grants, Subsidies and other Transfer Payments
Contribution to CF (15%)

Disbursement Transfer

Payment

Payment

Total Payments

43.10 - Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment
Hardware: servers and equipment (incl. desktops, laptops etc.)
Lease hold land

Machinery and equipment - WIP

Motor vehicles,

Office buildings and structures

Office Furniture and Fittings

Transmission and studio equipment

568,652,894

30,084,165

30,084,165

30,084,165

50,000,000
1,159,327,087

1,209,327,087

1,209,327,087

25,477,101,102

63,407,312
34,941,555
2,390,810,538
488,976,167

128,820,715
3,666,121,706

387,231,351

37,811,858
37,811,858

37,811,858

50,000,000

50,000,000

50,000,000

22,712,676,441

347,780,434
170,385,444
814,121,443
264,551,505
126,839,114.12
87,812,886
2,295,861,136

Payment 6,773,077,993 4,107,351,962
Add/Less (Change in Working Capital)
Prepayment-Asset (488,976,167) 488,976,167
(488,976,167) 488,976,167
Payment 6,284,101,826 4,596,328,129
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